Principal
Asset Management™

Principal Real Estate
Income Fund (PGZ)

ANNUAL REPORT
October 31,2023



Section 19(b) disclosure

October 31,2023 (Unaudited)

The Principal Real Estate Income Fund (the “Fund”), acting pursuant to a
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) exemptive order and with
the approval of the Fund’s Board of Trustees (the “Board”), has adopted
a plan, consistent with the Fund’s investment objectives and policies, to
support a level monthly distribution of income, capital gains and/or
return of capital (the “Plan”). In accordance with the Plan, the Fund
distributed $0.105 per share on a monthly basis during the year ended
October 31,2023.

The fixed amount distributed per share is subject to change at the
discretion of the Fund’s Board. Under the Plan, the Fund will distribute all
available investment income to its shareholders, consistent with the Fund’s
primary investment objectives and as required by the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). If sufficient investment income is
not available on a monthly basis, the Fund will distribute long-term capital
gains and/or return of capital to shareholders in order to maintain a level
distribution. Each monthly distribution to shareholders is expected to be
at the fixed amount established by the Board, except for extraordinary
distributions and potential distribution rate increases or decreases to
enable the Fund to comply with the distribution requirements imposed by
the Code.

Shareholders should not draw any conclusions about the Fund’s
investment performance from the amount of these distributions or from
the terms of the Plan. The Fund’s total return performance on net asset
value is presented in its financial highlights table.

The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the Fund’s Plan at any time
without prior notice if it deems such action to be in the best interest of
either the Fund or its shareholders. The suspension or termination of the
Plan could have the effect of creating a trading discount (if a Fund’s stock
is trading at or above net asset value) or widening an existing trading
discount. The Fund is subject to risks that could have an adverse impact

on its ability to maintain level distributions. Examples of potential risks
include, but are not limited to, economic downturns impacting the markets,
increased market volatility, companies suspending or decreasing corporate
dividend distributions and changes in the Code. Please refer to the Fund’s
prospectus for a more complete description of its risks.

Please refer to the Additional Information section in this shareholder report
for a cumulative summary of the Section 19(a) notices for the Fund’s current
fiscal period. Section 19(a) notices for the Fund, as applicable, are available
on the Principal Real Estate Income Fund’s website; www.principalcef.com.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Performance Overview
October 31, 2023 (Unaudited)

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

The Fund’s investment objective is to seek to provide high current income, with capital
appreciation as a secondary objective, by investing in commercial real estate-related securities.
There can be no assurance that the Fund will achieve its investment objective.

Under normal market conditions, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in commercial
real estate-related securities, primarily consisting of commercial mortgage backed securities
(“CMBS”) and other U.S. and non-U.S. real estate-related securities (primarily real estate
investment trusts (“REITs”) or REIT-like entities). Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest
between 40% and 70% of its total assets in CMBS and will invest between 30% and 60% in other
real estate-related securities (including REITs).

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Principal Real Estate Income Fund (“PGZ” or the “Fund”) was launched June 25, 2013. As of
October 31, 2023, the Fund was 65.63% allocated to commercial mortgage-backed securities
(“CMBS”) and 31.14% in U.S. and International real estate securities, primarily real estate
investment trusts (“REITs”). For the 12-month period ended October 31, 2023, the Fund delivered
a net return, at market price, of -8.20%, assuming dividends are reinvested back into the Fund,
based on the closing share price of $8.69 on October 31, 2023. This compares to the return of the
S&P 500°® Index, over the same time-period, of 10.14% assuming dividends are reinvested into the
index. This also compares to the return of the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index of 0.36%.

The October 31, 2023, closing market price of $8.69 represented a 11.5% discount to the Fund’s Net
Asset Value (“NAV”). This compares to an average 8.60% discount for equity real estate closed-end
funds and a 6.37% discount for mortgage-backed securities closed-end funds (source: Bloomberg).

Based on NAV, the Fund returned -12.96% including dividends, for the 12-month period ended
October 31, 2023. The themes that dominated the real estate markets during the year besides the
Fed, inflation and recession, which have been driving markets for the past two years, were the
regional banking crisis in March, office loan defaults and the dramatic increase in 10-year interest
rates the last two months of the period. The news of regional bank failures mid-March resulted in
volatility spiking due to fear of contagion. The volatility subsided after swift action from the FDIC
and the realization that the circumstances around the failures were specific to the 2-3 banks
involved. Office defaults also captured the market’s attention in February when Brookfield
defaulted on two large floating rate office loans in Los Angeles and additional loan defaults started
to make headlines. Since February, office delinquency rates have continued to increase as
refinancing remains a challenge and higher vacancies are resulting in defaults during the loan term
as well. While concerns on office fundamentals were already priced into the market, the reality of
office loans defaulting and continued negative trends in leasing has put a longer-term office
exposure risk premium into the market. Finally, the spike in 10-year interest rates from 3.6% at the
end of May to 4.9% to end the period has generally weighed on real estate sentiment as values are
negatively impacted by higher cap rates and the hurdle for borrowers to refinance moves higher
for all property types.

CMBS underperformed the broader market during the period because exposure to office and
negative real estate sentiment has not allowed CMBS spreads to recover the regional banking
crisis like the broader market has. Office loans make up roughly 30% of the fixed rated conduit
market so higher market default and loss expectations on office loans has had a lasting impact on
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October 31, 2023 (Unaudited)

market cumulative loss expectations and CMBS credit spreads. This is especially true for low
coupon CMBS bonds issued in 2019-2021 when interest rates were under 2%. While the CMBS
market has exposure to other property types, such as multifamily, industrial, hotels and even
retail, that are performing well on a fundamental basis, the potential for office risk, along with
refinance risk, becoming systematic has captured the market’s attention.

Global REITs were weighed down by rising bond yields over the trailing 12 month period, lagging
equities by a wide margin though there was significant intra period volatility. Going into the
beginning of the year, firmer economic data and moderating headline inflation sparked a rally in
equity markets with the narrative shifting quickly from a ‘soft landing’ to ‘no landing’. However, a
spate of firmer than expected core inflation readings and the sudden bank failures in March
triggered a pullback in global equities returns off their highs before rapid central bank action
placed a floor under the declines. Markets ground higher into April, supported by slightly better
than anticipated start to the US earnings season and moderating inflation before renewed signs of
firmer than expected US growth and concerns over the burgeoning fiscal deficit sparked another
move higher in long term rates.

CMBS

The CMBS holdings within the Fund returned -8.75% for the 12 months ended October 31, 2023.
This compares to the return of the Bloomberg US CMBS 2.0 BBB of -10.01%. The main drivers of
returns for the period were higher interest rates, the steepening of the credit curve for BBB and BB
rated bonds issued in 2019-2021, discounts getting larger for originally BBB and BB rated bonds
from seasoned deals issued in 2012-2014 and the strong carry and positive relative spread
performance of interest only securities. Spreads on more recently issued BBB and BB rated bonds,
that were already under pressure due to recession fears, widened dramatically as the risk of office
exposure and loans refinancing was brought to the forefront of the market. While the headline
office defaults were initially limited to short-term, floating rate SASB loans that were due for loan
extension or maturity the market has extrapolated that risk into the fixed rate conduit markets.
Price discounts on seasoned credit exposure in the portfolio steepened on bonds where the return
of principal is relying on maturing loans secured by performing regional malls refinancing. The
price action reflects assumptions that these maturing loans will be extended for 3-5 years, delaying
the return of principal, and remain at risk of loss on the eventual resolution of those loans. We
believe loans extensions are a positive signal for credit as this indicates the borrower is willing to
invest new equity in the properties in exchange for an extension while avoiding a liquidation in a
stressed market. Positive performance in the portfolio came from exposure to interest only loans
that are structurally protected from initial loan defaults and benefit from loans not being able to
refinance and extending.

The widening of credit spreads on recently issued bonds implies that the market has extrapolated
the refinance risk that has captured the market’s attention in 2023 into later years as the
percentage of fixed rate CMBS conduit loans that mature in 2023 is relatively low. Of the $335B of
fixed rate conduit loans outstanding, 3% mature in 2023, 11% in 2024 and 13% in 2025 according
to Trepp. The maturity schedule for fixed rate office loans, which make up 30% of the fixed rate
universe, is similar with 3% of loans maturing in 2023, 11% in 2024 and 12% in 2025. While the
fixed rate CMBS market does not face a wall of maturities, the market is assuming that
fundamental and capital market stress, especially on office, will continue beyond 2023 and 2024.
These changes in market expectations have brought concerns about systematic risk back into the
market which is driving loss expectations and credit spreads higher.
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The performance of the CMBS holdings within the Fund reflects the material impact that higher
interest rates and systematic changes in office demand has had on the outlook for the
fundamental performance, and especially the outlook for refinancing prospects, of CMBS loans in
the near-to-medium term. This further dislocation in CMBS spreads in a market that has been
under pressure since the post-Covid recovery stalled mid-2021 reinforces the impact that higher
interest rates, declining office fundamentals and a potential recession has had CMBS loan-level
loss expectations. The near-term direction of CMBS prices is going to be driven by broader risk
sentiment as it relates to a recession in the U.S. and more specifically, the resolution of loans
maturing through the rest of 2023 and into 2024 and overall delinquency trends. We believe the
portfolio is well-positioned to take advantage of CMBS spreads tightening through the end of the
Fed tightening cycle and the outlook for interest rates to trend lower over the next 12 months.

GLOBAL REAL ESTATE SECURITIES
The global real estate securities holdings within the Fund fell -3.18%, during the trailing twelve
months ending October 31, 2023.

By region, the Fund’s holdings in Europe were the best performers, lifted by a significant currency
tailwind as the ECB reasserted its inflation fighting credentials with a raft of sharp rate hikes.
Towards the later part of the reporting period, weaker Eurozone growth raised expectations of a
potential ECB dovish pivot, lifting the performance of rate sensitives. Asia was the worst
performer, hit by weakness in Hong Kong and Australia. Hong Kong in particular was impacted by
concern over higher US rates and an uncertain China outlook, whilst Australia was negatively
impacted by currency headwinds. By sector, ownership of US data centers (benefitted from Al
theme) and healthcare (strong growth as occupancy continues to pick up post COVID) were the
main contributors. Conversely, the portfolio’s self-storage holdings were adversely affected by
weaker operating trends, whilst net lease stocks came under pressure from higher bond yields.

After a promising start to 2023, global REITs have now given back most of their initial
outperformance against equities. Much of the relative underperformance against equities started
from March, as the prospect of a banking crisis driven credit crunch weighed heavily on the
capital-intensive real estate sector. In recent months, global bond yields have moved higher once
again on prospects for firmer than expected U.S. economic growth despite signs of softening
inflation. Burgeoning budget deficits and larger U.S. Treasury issuance plans have also been a
factor. Meanwhile central banks have also been generally unwilling to temper hawkish rhetoric.
This has pushed back expectations for central bank rate cuts, increasing upward pressure on bond
yields and pressuring REIT performance.

Higher bond yields are coming at a time when the US economy is decelerating. Leading indicators
tracked by the U.S. Conference Board are already in recessionary territory. Even if the U.S. is able
to skirt a recession in the next few quarters, sustained elevated bond yields will further tighten
financial conditions serving as an added brake on the economy. There is already growing evidence
that the US labor market is starting to cool gradually based on job openings, hours worked and
quit rates. More concrete signs of disinflation and moderating economic growth could provide
central banks more latitude to skew dovish and eventually cut interest rates. As a case in point,
Fed Chair Powell delivered a more dovish “wait-and-see" message at the US Federal Reserve’s
most recent meeting which helped spark the pullback in bond yields in early November.
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REITs tend to perform better against equities in the later stages of the rate hike cycle with their
relative outperformance generally becoming more marked as rates peak and fall. Admittedly,
absolute returns may be negative if the economy enters a recession even if relative returns are in
the green. That said, historical evidence suggests that REITs have more often than not, delivered
strong positive returns in the 12 months after real yields have peaked. We believe a recession is
needed to tame inflation and this will eventually result in falling interest rates. Given our cautious
view of the world, we continue to maintain a core of select a) structural growth stocks which we
believe have pricing power given strong demand supply fundamentals and to b) avoid companies
with bad balance sheets. This should position us well to weather any growth slowdown driven by
overzealous central bank rate hikes or other geopolitical concerns.

The Fund intends to make regular monthly distributions to stockholders at a constant and fixed
(but not guaranteed) rate. The Board of Trustees approve the distribution and may adjust it from
time to time. The monthly distribution amount from November 1, 2022 to October 31, 2023 was
$0.105 per share.

At times, to maintain a stable level of distributions, the Fund may pay out less than all of its net
investment income or pay out accumulated undistributed income, or return of capital, in addition
to current net investment income. There is no guarantee that the Fund's current distribution policy
will reduce or eliminate the Fund's market price discount to its net asset value per share and the
Fund's trustees have no fiduciary duty to take action, or to consider taking any action, to narrow
any such discount. The distribution policy may be changed or discontinued without notice.
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References:

The Premium/Discount is the amount (stated in dollars or percent) by which the selling or purchase
price of a fund is greater than (premium) or less than (discount) its face amount/value or net asset
value (NAV).

Duration is a measure of the sensitivity of the price (the value of principal) of a fixed-income
investment to a change in interest rates. Duration is expressed as a number of years. The duration
number is a calculation involving present value, yield, coupon, final maturity and call features. The
bigger the duration number, the greater the interest-rate risk or reward for bond prices. Rising
interest rates mean falling bond prices, while declining interest rates mean rising bond prices.

S&P 500° Index — A large cap U.S. equities index that includes 500 leading companies and captures
approximately 80% coverage of available market capitalization.

Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index — A broad-based benchmark that measures the investment grade,
U.S. dollar-denominated, fixed rate taxable bond market, including Treasuries, government related and
corporate securities, MBS (agency fixed-rate and hybrid ARM pass throughs), ABS, and CMBS.

Morningstar Developed Markets Index — An index that captures the performance of the stocks located
in the developed countries across the world. Stocks in the index are weighted by their float capital,
which removes corporate cross ownership, government holdings and other locked-in shares.

A bond rating is a grade given to bonds by private, independent ratings services that indicates their
credit quality. Investment grade bonds range from AAA to BBB- and will usually see bond yields

increase as ratings decrease.

Issuance information — JPMorgan
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PERFORMANCE as of October 31, 2023

TOTAL RETURNS® CUMULATIVE AVERAGE ANNUAL
Fund 6 Month 1Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
Net Asset Value (NAV)2®) -7.66% -12.96% -1.73% -4.64% 2.14%
Market Price® -3.43% -8.20% 6.82% -4.28% 1.94%
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate

Bond Index -6.13% 0.36% -5.57% -0.06% 0.88%
Morningstar Developed

Markets Index -1.83% 10.25% 8.01% 8.22% 7.85%

1) Total returns assume reinvestment of all distributions.

2 Performance returns are net of management fees and other Fund expenses.

B3) Market price is the value at which the Fund trades on an exchange. This market price can be
higher or lower than its NAV.

4 Excludes adjustments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and as such the NAV and total return for shareholder transactions
reported to the market may differ from the NAV for financial reporting purposes.

Performance data quoted represents past performance. Past performance does not guarantee
future results. Investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an
investor’s shares, when sold or redeemed, may be worth more or less than the original cost.
Current performance data may be higher or lower than actual data quoted. For the most current
month-end performance data please call 855.838.9485.

Total Annual Expense Ratio as a Percentage of Net Assets Attributable to Common Shares including
interest expense, as of October 31, 2023, 5.32%.

Total Annual Expense Ratio as a Percentage of Net Assets Attributable to Common Shares
excluding interest expense, as of October 31, 2023, 2.55%.

The Fund is a closed-end fund and does not continuously issue shares for sale as open-end mutual
funds do. Since the initial public offering, the Fund now trades only in the secondary market.
Investors wishing to buy or sell shares need to place orders through an intermediary or broker and
additional charges or commissions will apply. The share price of a closed-end fund is based on the
market’s value.

Distributions may be paid from sources of income other than ordinary income, such as net realized
short-term capital gains, net realized long-term capital gains and return of capital. Based on
current estimates, distributions have been paid in the current fiscal year from net investment
income and return of capital. The actual amounts and sources of the amounts for tax purposes will
depend upon a Fund'’s investment experience during the remainder of its fiscal year and may be
subject to changes based on tax regulations. If a distribution includes anything other than net
investment income, the Fund provides a Section 19(a) notice of the best estimate of its distribution
sources at that time. These estimates may not match the final tax characterization (for the full
year’s distributions) contained in shareholders’ 1099-DIV forms after the end of the year. Indices
are unmanaged; their returns do not reflect any fees, expenses, or sales charges. An investor
cannot invest directly in an index.

ALPS Advisors, Inc. is the investment adviser to the Fund.
ALPS Portfolio Solutions Distributor, Inc. is a FINRA member.

Principal Real Estate Investors, LLC is the investment sub-adviser to the Fund. Principal Real Estate
Investors, LLC is not affiliated with ALPS Advisors, Inc. or any of its affiliates.

Secondary market support provided to the Fund by ALPS Advisors, Inc.’s affiliate, ALPS Portfolio
Solutions Distributor, Inc., FINRA Member
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GROWTH OF A HYPOTHETICAL $10,000 INVESTMENT
The graph below illustrates the growth of a hypothetical $10,000 investment assuming the

purchase of common shares of beneficial interest at the closing market price on October 31, 2013
and tracking its progress through October 31, 2023.
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Past performance does not guarantee future results. Performance will fluctuate with changes in
market conditions. Current performance may be lower or higher than the performance data shown.
Performance information does not reflect the deduction of taxes that shareholders would pay on
Fund distributions or the sale of Fund shares. An investment in the Fund involves risk, including loss
of principal.
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SECTOR ALLOCATION"

- Commercial Backed Securities - 65.63%

Il us. resl Estate Securities - 20.32%

- International Real Estate Securities - 10.82%

Short Term Investments - 3.23%

A

Holdings are subject to change.
Percentages are based on total investments of the Fund.

GEOGRAPHIC BREAKDOWN as of October 31, 2023

% of Total
Investments

United States 89.19%
Japan 3.12%
Australia 1.53%
France 1.29%
Great Britain 1.18%
Hong Kong 1.06%
Singapore 1.01%
Canada 0.90%
Spain 0.32%
Mexico 0.20%
South Korea 0.11%
Poland 0.09%

100.00%

Holdings are subject to change.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Trustees of
Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities, including the statement of
investments, of the Principal Real Estate Income Fund (the “Fund”) as of October 31, 2023, the
related statements of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, the statements of
changes in net assets for each of the two years in the period then ended, the related notes, and
the financial highlights for each of the five years in the period then ended (collectively referred to
as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as of October 31, 2023, the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended, the changes in net assets for each of the two years in the
period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the five years in the period then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Fund’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Fund in accordance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. Our procedures included confirmation of securities
owned as of October 31, 2023, by correspondence with the custodian and brokers; when replies
were not received from brokers, we performed other auditing procedures. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have served as the Fund’s auditor since 2013.
Z&ﬁ/{ﬂ d (ompanyy Lidl
COHEN & COMPANY, LTD.

Cleveland, Ohio
December 22, 2023
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statement of Investments

October 31, 2023

Value
Description Shares (Note 2)
COMMON STOCKS (45.32%)
Investment Management/Advisory Services (0.30%)
RAM Essential Services Property Fund(@ 482,943 S 196,067
Real Estate Management/Services (0.61%)
ESR Kendall Square REIT Co., Ltd. 45,061 106,767
Qualitas, Ltd. 201,910 294,587
401,354
Real Estate Operation/Development (1.59%)
Echo Investment SA 82,068 83,782
Mitsui Fudosan Co., Ltd. 25,300 541,970
Sumitomo Realty & Development Co., Ltd. 12,500 309,583
Sun Hung Kai Properties, Ltd. 11,000 112,948
1,048,283
REITS-Apartments (5.77%)
Apartment Income REIT Corp. 15,912 464,789
AvalonBay Communities, Inc. 5,153 854,058
Daiwa House REIT Investment Corp. 166 293,067
Essex Property Trust, Inc. 3,032 648,605
Invincible Investment Corp. 919 352,261
Invitation Homes, Inc. 39,727 1,179,495
3,792,275
REITS-Diversified (12.98%)
Activia Properties, Inc. 141 380,000
American Tower Corp. 780 138,988
Arena REIT 37,135 74,674
Broadstone Net Lease, Inc. 44,828 634,316
Cromwell European Real Estate Investment Trust(@ 214,860 261,445
Crown Castle, Inc. 4,252 395,351
Digital Core REIT Management Pte, Ltd. 277,391 140,083
Digital Realty Trust, Inc. 17,243 2,144,340
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. 25,217 1,144,600
LondonMetric Property PLC 64,076 128,816
Mercialys SA 99,061 842,724
Merlin Properties Socimi SA 37,507 311,933
Sekisui House Reit, Inc. 840 441,128
Stockland 173,677 390,008
VICI Properties, Inc. 39,549 1,103,417
8,531,823
REITS-Health Care (7.26%)
Chartwell Retirement Residence 17,600 128,946
Healthcare Realty Trust, Inc. 10,878 156,099
National Health Investors, Inc. 16,351 818,204
Sabra Health Care REIT, Inc. 87,877 1,198,642
Ventas, Inc. 34,280 1,455,529

Annual Report | October 31, 2023



Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statement of Investments

October 31, 2023

Value
Description Shares (Note 2)
REITS-Health Care (continued)
Welltower, Inc. 12,101 $1,011,765
4,769,185
REITS-Hotels (0.20%)
Far East Hospitality Trust 312,200 134,535
REITS-Manufactured Homes (1.04%)
Sun Communities, Inc. 6,125 681,345
REITS-Office Property (0.61%)
Alexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc. 4,298 400,273
REITS-Regional Malls (0.64%)
Klepierre SA 17,257 418,146
REITS-Shopping Centers (2.94%)
Lendlease Global Commercial REIT 352,367 131,254
Link REIT 176,620 810,282
Saul Centers, Inc. 28,506 991,154
1,932,690
REITS-Single Tenant (1.16%)
Realty Income Corp. 7,025 332,844
Spirit Realty Capital, Inc. 11,923 429,109
761,953
REITS-Storage (2.48%)
Big Yellow Group PLC 16,723 194,113
CubeSmart 6,874 234,335
Extra Space Storage, Inc. 9,696 1,004,409
National Storage REIT 156,773 198,897
1,631,754
REITS-Warehouse/Industrials (7.39%)
AIMS AMP Capital Industrial REIT 180,700 158,376
Centuria Industrial REIT 146,728 264,338
CRE Logistics REIT, Inc. 228 239,169
Dream Industrial Real Estate Investment Trust 22,400 189,150
ESR-LOGOS REIT 781,371 156,942
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 4,833 204,436
Goodman Group 5,762 75,807
Industrial & Infrastructure Fund Investment Corp. 272 243,512
Mitsubishi Estate Logistics REIT Investment Corp. 96 240,990
Nexus Industrial REIT 97,400 456,535
Plymouth Industrial REIT, Inc. 12,382 246,897
PRO Real Estate Investment Trust 34,503 106,488
Prologis, Inc. 10,814 1,089,510
Rexford Industrial Realty, Inc. 6,458 279,244

www.principalcef.com



Principal Real Estate Income Fund Statement of Investments

October 31, 2023

Value
Description Shares (Note 2)
REITS-Warehouse/Industrials (continued)
Segro PLC 37,952 S 328,806
SF Real Estate Investment Trust(® 339,000 110,469
TF Administradora Industrial S de RL de CV 119,000 192,998
Tritax Big Box REIT PLC 163,040 271,093
4,854,760
Storage (0.35%)
Safestore Holdings PLC 27,829 231,192
TOTAL COMMON STOCKS
(Cost $34,147,725) 29,785,635
PREFERRED STOCKS (0.85%)
REITS-Shopping Centers (0.85%)
RPT Realty, 7.25%) 11,000 555,280
TOTAL PREFERRED STOCKS
(Cost $442,246) 555,280
Maturity Principal Value
Description Rate Date Amount (Note 2)
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE BACKED SECURITIES (97.27%)
Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities-Other (15.12%)
BANK 2021-BN35(c)d)(e) 1.500% 06/15/64 $ 3,100,000 S 250,674
Benchmark 2022-B36 Mortgage Trust 2022-
B36lcld)e) 2.619% 07/15/55 15,860,000 2,625,281
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust:
2019-GC43(d)e) 0.619% 11/10/29 2,500,000 71,511
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2022-
GC48 2022-GCA48()d)(e) 2.375% 06/15/55 16,920,000 2,613,991
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pass Through
Certificates 2012-K052()() 1.616% 01/25/44 9,690,000 301,525
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2021-MHC 2021-MHCd)  6.250% 04/15/38 2,083,498 2,057,987
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust:
2015-C28)e 0.919% 12/15/24 25,002,164 208,770
2013-C150d)e) 1.412% 11/15/45 8,457,602 85
2006-CB17') 5.489% 12/12/43 513,733 380,198
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill
Lynch Trust 2015-C20(c)(d)e) 1.604% 02/15/48 23,967,000 365,478
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust:
2016-UB11(d)e) 1.500% 08/15/49 13,495,500 456,551
2021-L5@ 2.500% 05/15/54 1,400,000 473,380
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust
2022-C620E) 0.047% 04/15/55 45,827,000 128,678
9,934,109
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Statement of Investments
October 31, 2023

Maturity Principal Value
Description Rate Date Amount (Note 2)

Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities-Subordinated (82.15%)

BANK:

2021-BN35)d 1.660% 06/15/64 S 3,200,000 S 985,176

2019-BN22()d) 1.961% 11/15/62 2,000,000 781,773

2021-BN34(d) 2.250% 06/15/63 1,400,000 456,241

2018-BN12()(d) 2.906% 05/15/61 2,500,000 965,587
BANK 2020-BNK25:

2020-BN25(<)d) 1.915% 01/15/63 3,000,000 1,142,585

2020-BN25() 2.500% 01/15/63 1,250,000 573,406
BANK 2020-BNK27 2020-BN27( 2.500% 04/15/63 1,949,000 1,030,494
BANK 2023-BNK45 2023-BNK45() 4.000% 02/15/56 1,250,000 690,931
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2022-C18 2022-

c18d) 4.000% 12/15/32 3,602,000 2,039,168
Benchmark 2018-B6 Mortgage Trust 2018-

Bl 3.097% 10/10/51 1,719,500 748,816
Benchmark 2019-B15 Mortgage Trust 2019-

B15( 3.721% 12/15/72 1,862,000 1,180,596
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust 2020-

B19 3.211% 09/15/53 2,000,000 1,158,611
Benchmark 2021-B31 Mortgage Trust 2021-

B31( 2.250% 12/15/54 1,149,000 410,250
Benchmark Mortgage Trust:

2020-B209 2.000% 10/15/53 1,800,000 809,153

2021-B29)d) 2.305% 09/15/54 3,000,000 942,371
BMO 2022-C1 Mortgage Trust 2022-C1() 2.000% 02/15/55 5,048,000 2,229,393
BMO 2023-C4 Mortgage Trust 2023-C4)  5863% 02/15/56 2,125,000 1,407,408
Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending

2019-CF2 2019-CF2() 3.634% 11/15/52 1,750,000 1,204,971
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust:

2019-GC43 3.000% 11/10/29 1,000,000 328,300

2019-GC43 3.000% 11/10/52 1,500,000 567,304
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-

GC412019-GC41@ 3.000% 08/10/56 1,600,000 929,800
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-

GC43 2019-GC431@ 3.000% 11/10/52 4,074,000 2,126,545
COMM 2012-CCRE3 Mortgage Trust 2012-

CR3( 3.922% 10/15/45 3,145,000 2,511,597
COMM 2015-LC19 Mortgage Trust 2015-

LC19 4.213% 02/10/48 1,490,000 1,324,189
Commercial Mortgage Trust:

2014-UBS5() 3.495% 09/10/47 5,004,500 3,335,256

2013-CR6)d) 3.859% 03/10/46 6,335,000 3,875,955

2013-LC6ld) 4.004% 01/10/46 739,012 681,055

2012-CR50) 4.471% 12/10/45 2,376,787 2,026,805

2014-UBS2(d) 4.982% 03/10/47 2,932,500 2,349,168
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statement of Investments

October 31, 2023

Maturity Principal Value
Description Rate Date Amount (Note 2)
Goldman Sachs Mortgage Securities Trust:
2020-GC47t)d 2.454% 05/12/53 $ 2,500,000 S 971,622
2013-GC140d) 4.258% 08/10/46 2,000,000 1,229,000
2013-GC160)d) 5.091% 11/10/46 2,342,405 2,243,203
2010-C1/d 5.635% 07/10/20 2,250,000 2,181,320
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust:
2013-C15 3.500% 10/15/23 2,500,000 2,073,623
2012-Coleld 4.964% 05/15/45 1,500,000 1,244,028
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2019-H6
2019-H6 3.000% 06/15/52 1,750,000 1,060,137
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2020-L4
2020-L4 3.082% 02/15/53 541,000 388,884
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C174) 2.500% 10/15/29 1,400,000 857,969
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust:
2015-NXS3( 3.153% 09/15/57 1,500,000 1,283,534
2017-C400 4.304% 10/15/50 2,000,000 1,643,835
53,990,059
TOTAL COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE BACKED SECURITIES
(Cost $79,839,367) 63,924,168
7-Day Value
Description Yield Shares (Note 2)
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS (4.78%)
State Street Institutional Treasury Plus Money Market
Fund - Premier Class 5.300% 3,144,941 S 3,144,941

TOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
(Cost $3,144,941)

3,144,941

TOTAL INVESTMENTS (148.22%)
(Cost $117,574,279)

Liabilities in Excess of Other Assets (-48.22%)

$ 97,410,024

(31,692,039)

NET ASSETS (100.00%)

$ 65,717,985
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Statement of Investments

(a)

()

(c)

(@

(e)

October 31, 2023

Securities were purchased pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, which
exempts securities offered and sold outside of the United States from registration. Such
securities cannot be sold in the United States without either an effective registration statement
filed pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, or pursuant to an exemption from registration. As
of October 31, 2023, the aggregate value of those securities was 3567,981 representing 0.86%
of net assets.

Security has no contractual maturity date, is not redeemable and contractually pays an
indefinite stream of interest.

Variable rate investment. Interest rates reset periodically. Interest rate shown reflects the rate
in effect at October 31, 2023. Certain variable rate securities are not based on a published
reference rate and spread but are determined by the issuer or agent and are based on current
market conditions. These securities do not indicate a reference rate and spread in their
description above.

Security exempt from registration under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. Such
securities may normally be sold to qualified institutional buyers in transactions exempt from
registration. The total value of Rule 1444 securities amounts to $56,003,911, which represents
approximately 85.22% of net assets as of October 31, 2023.

Interest only security.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

October 31, 2023

ASSETS:
Investments, at value 97,410,024
Cash 16,819
Receivable for investments sold 413,263
Interest receivable 465,531
Dividends receivable 50,042
Prepaid and other assets 46,640
Total Assets 98,402,319
LIABILITIES:
Loan payable (Note 3) 32,000,000
Interest and commitment fee due on loan payable 144,277
Payable for investments purchased 323,758
Payable to adviser 88,507
Payable to administrator 24,542
Payable to transfer agent 3,239
Payable for trustee fees 41,696
Other payables 58,315
Total Liabilities 32,684,334
Net Assets 65,717,985
NET ASSETS CONSIST OF:
Paid-in capital 119,143,069
Total distributable earnings/(accumulated deficit) (53,425,084)
Net Assets 65,717,985
PRICING OF SHARES:
Net Assets 65,717,985
Common Shares of beneficial interest outstanding (unlimited number of

shares authorized, no par value per share) 6,694,109
Net asset value per share 9.82

Cost of Investments

See Notes to Financial Statements.

117,574,279
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statement of Operations

INVESTMENT INCOME:

For the Year Ended October 31, 2023

Interest S 6,191,871
Dividends (net of foreign withholding tax of $61,868) 1,465,536
Total Investment Income 7,657,407
EXPENSES:

Investment advisory fees 1,204,033
Interest on loan 2,156,086
Commitment fee on loan 54,401
Administration fees 209,203
Transfer agent fees 28,622
Audit fees 36,725
Legal fees 102,126
Custodian fees 23,866
Trustee fees 193,399
Printing fees 55,588
Insurance fees 35,302
Other 44,401
Total Expenses 4,143,752
Net Investment Income 3,513,655

REALIZED AND UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY:

Net realized gain/(loss) on:
Investments
Foreign currency transactions

(10,555,224)
1,833

Net realized loss

(10,553,391)

Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on:

Investments (4,693,633)
Translation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 1,798
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation (4,691,835)
Net Realized and Unrealized Loss on Investments and Foreign Currency (15,245,226)

Net Decrease in Net Assets Resulting from Operations

$  (11,731,571)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the

Year Ended
October 31, 2023

For the

Year Ended
October 31, 2022

OPERATIONS:
Net investment income S 3,513,655 S 7,063,896
Net realized loss on investments and foreign currency

transactions (10,553,391) (4,259,317)
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on

investments and translation of assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies (4,691,835) (28,587,485)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (11,731,571) (25,782,906)
DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS:
Distributions to shareholders (3,618,615) (7,473,490)
From tax return of capital (4,869,493) (650,610)
Decrease in net assets from distributions to

shareholders (8,488,108) (8,124,100)
CAPITAL SHARE TRANSACTIONS (NOTE 6):
Cost of shares repurchased (1,077,831) (108,353)
Net decrease in net assets from capital share

transactions (1,077,831) (108,353)
Net Decrease in Net Assets (21,297,510) (34,015,359)
NET ASSETS:
Beginning of period 87,015,495 121,030,854
End of period S 65,717,985 §$ 87,015,495
OTHER INFORMATION:
Share Transactions:
Shares outstanding - beginning of period 6,802,798 6,812,922
Shares repurchased (Note 6) (108,689) (10,124)
Net decrease in shares outstanding (108,689) (10,124)
Shares outstanding - end of period 6,694,109 6,802,798
See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended October 31, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations S (11,731,571)
Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in net assets from operations to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Purchases of investment securities (44,595,967)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 57,878,588
Net sales of short-term investment securities 505,218
Net realized (gain)/loss on:

Investments 10,555,224
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on:

Investments 4,693,633
Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on investments 163,073
(Increase)/Decrease in assets:

Interest receivable 133,776

Dividends receivable (3,270)

Prepaid and other assets 2,885
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities:

Interest and commitment fee due on loan payable 53,923

Payable to transfer agent (1,547)

Payable to adviser (24,345)

Payable to administrator (30,878)

Payable for trustee fees (4,745)

Other payables (35,907)
Net cash provided by operating activities S 17,558,090
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases from bank borrowing S (8,000,000)
Cost of shares repurchased (1,077,831)
Cash distributions paid (8,488,108)
Net cash used in financing activities S (17,565,939)
Net decrease in cash S (7,849)
Cash and Foreign Currency, beginning balance S 24,668
Cash and Foreign Currency, ending balance S 16,819
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the period for interest from bank borrowing S 2,102,163

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Net asset value - beginning of period

Income/(loss) from investment operations:

Net investment income(@

Net realized and unrealized gain/(loss) on investments

Total income/(loss) from investment operations

Less distributions to shareholders:
From net investment income

From net realized gains

From tax return of capital

Total distributions

Capital share transactions:
Impact of Capital Share Transactions(@

Total capital share transactions

Net increase/(decrease) in net asset value

Net asset value - end of period

Market price - end of period

Total Return - NAV(©
Total Return - Market Pricel

Supplemental Data:
Net assets, end of period (in thousands)
Ratios to Average Net Assets:
Total expenses
Total expenses excluding interest expense
Net investment income
Total expenses to average managed assets(@
Portfolio turnover rate
Borrowings at End of Period
Aggregate Amount Outstanding (in thousands)
Asset Coverage Per $1,000 (in thousands)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Financial Highlights

For a share outstanding throughout the periods presented.

For the For the For the For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
October 31, October 31, October 31, October 31, October 31,

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

S 12.79 S 17.76 S 1384 S 2286 S 1954

0.52 1.04 0.86 0.98 1.12
(2.26) (4.82) 4.00 (8.68) 3.52
(1.74) (3.78) 4.86 (7.70) 4.64
(0.54) (1.09) (0.98) (0.95) (1.32)
- - - (0.10) -
(0.72) (0.10) - (0.27) -
(1.26) (1.19) (0.98) (1.32) (1.32)
0.03 0.00®) 0.04 - -
0.03 0.00®) 0.04 - -
(2.97) (4.97) 3.92 (9.02) 3.32

$ 9.82 S 12.79 S 17.76 S 13.84 S 2286
$ 8.69 S 1074 $ 1548 $ 9.46 S 2140

(12.89%) (21.42%) 37.54% (33.27%) 25.53%
(8.20%) (24.29%) 75.38% (51.28%) 35.31%

S 65,718 S 87,015 $ 121,031 S 95,513 S 157,717

5.32% 3.15% 2.61% 2.92% 3.45%
2.55% 2.26% 2.16% 2.13% 2.02%
4.51% 6.53% 5.25% 5.59% 5.31%
3.60% 2.19% 1.86% 2.08% 2.44%

37% 19% 37% 38% 17%

S 32,000 S 40,000 $ 50,000 S 40,500 S 60,000
$ 3,054 $ 3,175 S 3,421 $ 3,358 S 3,629
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund

@ Calculated using average shares throughout the period.

®  Less than $0.005 per share

©  Total investment return on market price is calculated assuming a purchase of common share
at the opening on the first day and a sale at closing on the last day of each period reported.
For purposes of this calculation, dividends and distributions, if any, are assumed to be
reinvested at prices obtained under the Fund's dividend reinvestment plan. Total investment
returns do not reflect brokerage commissions, if any. Total return on net asset value uses the
same methodology, but with use of net asset value for the beginning and ending values.

@ Average managed assets represent net assets applicable to common shares plus average
amount of borrowings during the period.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2023

1. ORGANIZATION

Principal Real Estate Income Fund (the “Fund”) is a Delaware statutory trust registered as a
non-diversified, closed-end management investment company under the Investment Company Act
of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”).

The Fund’s investment objective is to seek to provide high current income, with capital appreciation
as a secondary investment objective, by investing in commercial real estate related securities.

Investing in the Fund involves risks, including exposure to below-investment grade investments. The
Fund’s net asset value per share will vary and its distribution rate may vary and both may be affected
by numerous factors, including changes in the market spread over a specified benchmark, market
interest rates and performance of the broader equity markets. Fluctuations in net asset value may
be magnified as a result of the Fund’s use of leverage.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates: The financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”), which requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amount of increase or decrease in net assets from operations during the period reported.
Management believes the estimates and security valuations are appropriate; however, actual
results may differ from those estimates, and the security valuations reflected in the financial
statements may differ from the value the Fund ultimately realizes upon sale of the securities. The
Fund is considered an investment company under GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting
guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 946 Financial Services — Investment Companies. The
financial statements have been prepared as of the close of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”)
on October 31, 2023.

Portfolio Valuation: The net asset value per common share of the Fund is determined no less
frequently than daily, on each day that the NYSE is open for trading, as of the close of regular trading
on the NYSE (normally 4:00 p.m. New York time). The Fund’s net asset value per common share is
calculated in the manner authorized by the Fund’s Board of Trustees (the "Board" or "Trustees").
Net asset value per share is computed by dividing the value of the Fund’s total assets, less its
liabilities by the number of shares outstanding.

The Board has established the following procedures for valuation of the Fund’s assets under normal
market conditions. Marketable securities listed on foreign or U.S. securities exchanges generally are
valued at closing sale prices or, if there were no sales, at the mean between the closing bid and ask
prices on the exchange where such securities are primarily traded.

The Fund values commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS") and other debt securities not
traded in an organized market on the basis of valuations provided by an independent pricing service,
approved by the Board, which uses information with respect to transactions in such securities,
interest rate movements, new issue information, cash flows, yields, spreads, credit quality, and
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2023

other pertinent information as determined by the pricing service, in determining value. If the
independent primary or secondary pricing service is unable to provide a price for a security, if the
price provided by the independent primary or secondary pricing service is deemed unreliable, or if
events occurring after the close of the market for a security but before the time as of which the Fund
values its common shares would materially affect net asset value, such security will be valued at its
fair value as determined in good faith under procedures approved by the Board.

Pursuant to Rule 2a-5 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, the Board has appointed ALPS
Advisors, Inc. ("AAI" or the "Adviser") to serve as the valuation designee to perform fair value
determinations for investments in the Fund. In fair valuing the Fund’s investments, consideration is
given to several factors, which may include, among others, the following: the fundamental business
data relating to the issuer, borrower, or counterparty; an evaluation of the forces which influence
the market in which the investments are purchased and sold; the type, size and cost of the
investment; the information as to any transactions in or offers for the investment; the price and
extent of public trading in similar securities (or equity securities) of the issuer, or comparable
companies; the coupon payments, yield data/cash flow data; the quality, value and salability of
collateral, if any, securing the investment; the business prospects of the issuer, borrower, or
counterparty, as applicable, including any ability to obtain money or resources from a parent or
affiliate and an assessment of the issuer’s, borrower’s, or counterparty’s management; the
prospects for the industry of the issuer, borrower, or counterparty, as applicable, and multiples (of
earnings and/or cash flow) being paid for similar businesses in that industry; one or more
independent broker quotes for the sale price of the portfolio security; and other relevant factors.

Securities Transactions and Investment Income: Investment security transactions are accounted
for on a trade date basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Certain dividend
income from foreign securities will be recorded, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, as soon as
the Fund is informed of the dividend if such information is obtained subsequent to the ex-dividend
date and may be subject to withholding taxes in these jurisdictions. Withholding taxes on foreign
dividends have been provided for in accordance with the Fund's understanding of the applicable
country's tax rules and rates. Interest income, which includes amortization of premium and
accretion of discount, is recorded on the accrual basis. Discounts and premiums on commercial
mortgage backed securities purchased are accreted or amortized using the effective interest
method. Realized gains and losses from securities transactions and unrealized appreciation and
depreciation of securities are determined using the specific identification method for both financial
reporting and tax purposes. Paydown gains and losses on mortgage-related and other asset-back
securities, if any, are recorded as components of interest income in the Statement of Operations.
Interest-only stripped mortgage-backed securities (“IO Strips”) are securities that receive only
interest payments from a pool of mortgage loans. Little to no principal will be received by the Fund
upon maturity of an 10 Strip. Periodic adjustments are recorded to reduce the cost of the security
until maturity, which are included in interest income.

Fair Value Measurements: Investments in the Fund are recorded at their estimated fair value. The
Fund discloses the classification of its fair value measurements following a three-tier hierarchy based
on the inputs used to measure fair value. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may
be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability that are developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs reflect the reporting entity’s own
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2023

assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
that are developed based on the best information available.

Various inputs are used in determining the value of the Fund’s investments as of the end of the
reporting period. When inputs used fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the
hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls is determined based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The designated input levels are not
necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with these investments. These inputs are
categorized in the following hierarchy under applicable financial accounting standards:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments, unrestricted
assets or liabilities that a Fund has the ability to access at the measurement date;

Level 2 — Quoted prices which are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable (either directly
or indirectly) for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and

Level 3 - Significant unobservable prices or inputs (including the Fund’s own assumptions in
determining the fair value of investments) where there is little or no market activity

for the asset or liability at the measurement date.

The following is a summary of the inputs used to value the Fund’s investments as of October 31, 2023:

Level 2 - Level 3 -
Other Significant  Significant

Investments in Securities at Level 1- Observable Unobservable
Value* Quoted Prices Inputs Inputs Total
Common Stocks S 29,785,635 S - S - § 29,785,635
Preferred Stocks 555,280 - - 555,280
Commercial Mortgage Backed

Securities - 63,924,168 - 63,924,168
Short Term Investments 3,144,941 - - 3,144,941

Total S 33,485,856 S 63,924,168 S - $ 97,410,024

*  See Statement of Investments for industry classifications.

The Fund did not have any securities that used significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in
determining fair value, and there were no transfers into or out of Level 3, during the year ended
October 31, 2023.

Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities: As part of its investments in commercial real estate
related securities, the Fund will invest in CMBS which are subject to certain risks associated with
direct investments in CMBS. A CMBS is a type of mortgage-backed security that is secured by a loan
(or loans) on one or more interests in commercial real estate property. Investments in CMBS are
subject to the various risks which relate to the pool of underlying assets in which the CMBS
represents an interest. CMBS may be backed by obligations (including certificates of participation in
obligations) that are principally secured by commercial real estate loans or interests therein having
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Principal Real Estate Income Fund Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2023

multi-family or commercial use. Securities backed by commercial real estate assets are subject to
securities market risks as well as risks similar to those of direct ownership of commercial real estate
loans because those securities derive their cash flows and value from the performance of the
commercial real estate underlying such investments and/or the owners of such real estate.

Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REITs”): As part of its investments in real estate related
securities, the Fund will invest in REITs and is subject to certain risks associated with direct
investment in REITs. REITs possess certain risks which differ from an investment in common stocks.
REITs are financial vehicles that pool investors’ capital to acquire, develop and/or finance real estate
and provide services to their tenants. REITs may concentrate their investments in specific geographic
areas or in specific property types, e.g., regional malls, shopping centers, office buildings, apartment
buildings and industrial warehouses. REITs may be affected by changes in the value of their
underlying properties and by defaults by borrowers or tenants. REITs depend generally on their
ability to generate cash flow to make distributions to shareowners, and certain REITs have self-
liquidation provisions by which mortgages held may be paid in full and distributions of capital
returns may be made at any time.

As REITs generally pay a higher rate of dividends than most other operating companies, to the extent
application of the Fund’s investment strategy results in the Fund investing in REIT shares, the
percentage of the Fund’s dividend income received from REIT shares will likely exceed the
percentage of the Fund’s portfolio that is comprised of REIT shares. Distributions received by the
Fund from REITs may consist of dividends, capital gains and/or return of capital.

Dividend income from REITs is recognized on the ex-dividend date. The calendar year-end amounts
of ordinary income, capital gains, and return of capital included in distributions received from the
Fund’s investments in REITs are reported to the Fund after the end of the calendar year; accordingly,
the Fund estimates these amounts for accounting purposes until the characterization of REIT
distributions is reported to the Fund after the end of the calendar year. Estimates are based on the
most recent REIT distribution information available.

The performance of a REIT may be affected by its failure to qualify for tax-free pass-through of
income under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), or its failure to maintain
exemption from registration under the 1940 Act. Due to the Fund’s investments in REITs, the Fund
may also make distributions in excess of the Fund’s earnings and capital gains. Distributions, if any,
in excess of the Fund’s earnings and profits will first reduce the adjusted tax basis of a holder’s
common shares and, after that basis has been reduced to zero, will constitute capital gains to the
common shareholder.

Concentration Risk: The Fund invests in companies in the real estate industry, which may include
CMBS, REITs, REIT-like structures, and other securities that are secured by, or otherwise have
exposure to, real estate. Any fund that concentrates in a particular segment of the market will
generally be more volatile than a fund that invests more broadly. Any market price movements,
regulatory changes, or economic conditions affecting CMBS, REITs, REIT-like structures, and real
estate more generally, will have a significant impact on the Fund’s performance.

Foreign Currency Risk: The Fund expects to invest in securities denominated or quoted in currencies
other than the U.S. dollar. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates may affect the value of securities
owned by the Fund, the unrealized appreciation or depreciation of investments and gains on and
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income from investments. Currencies of certain countries may be volatile and therefore may affect the
value of securities denominated in such currencies, which means that the Fund’s net asset value could
decline as a result of changes in the exchange rates between foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar.
These risks often are heightened for investments in smaller, emerging capital markets.

The accounting records of the Fund are maintained in U.S. dollars. Prices of securities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the closing rates of the exchanges at period
end. Amounts related to the purchase and sale of foreign securities and investment income are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the respective dates of such transactions.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign
exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of
securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss
from investments.

Reported net realized foreign exchange gains or losses arise from sales of foreign currencies, currency
gains or losses realized between the trade and settlement dates on securities transactions, and the
difference between the amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes recorded on the
Fund's books and the U.S. dollar equivalent of the amounts actually received or paid. Net unrealized
foreign exchange gains and losses arise from changes in the fair values of assets and liabilities, other
than investments in securities at fiscal period-end, resulting from changes in exchange rates.

A foreign currency contract is a commitment to purchase or sell a foreign currency at a future date,
at a negotiated rate. The Fund may enter into foreign currency contracts to settle specific purchases
or sales of securities denominated in a foreign currency and for protection from adverse exchange
rate fluctuation. Risks to a Fund include the potential inability of the counterparty to meet the terms
of the contract.

Market Disruption and Geopolitical Risk: The value of your investment in the Fund is based on
the market prices of the securities the Fund holds. These prices change daily due to economic and
other events that affect markets generally, as well as those that affect particular regions, countries,
industries, companies or governments. These price movements, sometimes called volatility, may be
greater or less depending on the types of securities the Fund owns and the markets in which the
securities trade. Securities in the Fund’s portfolio may underperform due to inflation (or
expectations for inflation), interest rates, global demand for particular products or resources,
natural disasters, pandemics, epidemics, terrorism, regulatory events and governmental or quasi-
governmental actions. The occurrence of global events similar to those in recent years, such as the
war in Ukraine, terrorist attacks around the world, natural disasters, social and political discord or
debt crises and downgrades, among others, may result in market volatility and may have long term
effects on both the U.S. and global financial markets. The occurrence of such events may be sudden
and unexpected, and it is difficult to predict when similar events affecting the U.S. or global financial
markets may occur, the effects that such events may have and the duration of those effects. Any
such event(s) could have a significant adverse impact on the value and risk profile of the Fund’s
portfolio. There is a risk that you may lose money by investing in the Fund.
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Social, political, economic and other conditions and events, such as natural disasters, health
emergencies (e.g., epidemics and pandemics), tariffs and trade disruptions, recession, changes in
currency rates, terrorism, conflicts and social unrest, may occur and could significantly impact issuers,
industries, governments and other systems, including the financial markets. As global systems,
economies and financial markets are increasingly interconnected, events that once had only local
impact are now more likely to have regional or even global effects. Events that occur in one country,
region or financial market will, more frequently, adversely impact issuers in other countries, regions
or markets. For example, developments in the banking or financial services sectors could adversely
impact a wide range of companies and issuers. These impacts can be exacerbated by failures of
governments and societies to adequately respond to an emerging event or threat. These types of
events quickly and significantly impact markets in the U.S. and across the globe leading to extreme
market volatility and disruption. The extent and nature of the impact on supply chains or economies
and markets from these events is unknown, particularly if a health emergency or other similar event,
persists for an extended period of time. Such events could impact the Adviser's investment advisory
activities and services of other service providers, which in turn could adversely affect the Fund’s
investments and other operations. The value of the Fund’s investments may decrease as a result of
such events, particularly if these events adversely impact the operations and effectiveness of the
Adviser or key service providers or if these events disrupt systems and processes necessary or
beneficial to the investment advisory, other activities on behalf the Fund.

3. LEVERAGE

Under normal market conditions, the Fund’s policy is to utilize leverage through Borrowings and the
issuance of preferred shares in an amount that represents approximately 33 1/3% of the Fund’s total
assets, including proceeds from such Borrowings and issuances (or approximately 50% of the Fund’s
net assets). It is possible that the assets of the Fund will decline due to market conditions such that
this 33 1/3% limit will be exceeded. In that case, the leverage risk to shareholders will increase.
Borrowings will be subject to interest costs, which may or may not be recovered by appreciation of
the securities purchased. In certain cases, interest costs may exceed the return received on the
securities purchased.

The Fund maintains a $50,000,000 line of credit with State Street Bank and Trust Company (“SSB”),
which by its terms expires on September 6, 2024, subject to the restrictions and terms of the credit
agreement. Prior to September 6, 2023, the available line of credit was $60,000,000 with SSB. As of
October 31, 2023 the Fund has drawn down $32,000,000 from the SSB line of credit, the maximum
borrowing outstanding during the period was $40,000,000. The Fund is charged an interest rate of
1.00% (per annum) above the one-month SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate) or 6.33%, as of
the last renewal date, for borrowing under this credit agreement, on the last day of the interest
period. The Fund was charged a commitment fee on the average daily unused balance of the line
of credit at a rate of 0.25% (per annum). The Fund pledges its investment securities as the collateral
for the line of credit per the terms of the agreement. The average annualized interest rate charged
and the average outstanding loan payable for the year ended October 31, 2023 was as follows:

Average Interest Rate 5.73%
Average Outstanding Loan Payable $37,083,562
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4. INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

ALPS Advisors, Inc. serves as the Fund’s investment adviser pursuant to an Investment Advisory
Agreement with the Fund. As compensation for its services to the Fund, AAI receives an annual
investment advisory fee of 1.05% based on the Fund’s average Total Managed Assets (as defined
below). Pursuant to an Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement, AAl has retained Principal Real Estate
Investors, LLC (“PrinRei”’) as the Fund’s sub-advisor and pays PrinRei an annual fee of 0.55% based
on the Fund’s average Total Managed Assets. Investment advisory fees are paid monthly.

ALPS Fund Services, Inc. (“AFS”), an affiliate of AAl, serves as administrator to the Fund. Under an
Administration, Bookkeeping and Pricing Services Agreement, AFS is responsible for calculating the net
asset values, providing additional fund accounting and tax services, and providing fund administration
and compliance-related services to the Fund. AFS is entitled to receive a monthly fee, accrued daily
based on the Fund’s average Total Managed Assets, as defined below, plus a fixed fee for completion
of certain regulatory filings and reimbursement for certain out-of-pocket expenses.

DST Systems, Inc. (“DST”’), the parent company of AAl and AFS, serves as the Transfer Agent to the
Fund. Under the Transfer Agency Agreement, DST is responsible for maintaining all shareholder
records of the Fund. DST is entitled to receive an annual minimum fee of $24,413 plus out-of-pocket
expenses. DST is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SS&C Technologies Holdings, Inc. (“SS&C”), a publicly
traded company listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

The Fund pays no salaries or compensation to any of its interested Trustees or Officers. The four
independent Trustees of the Fund each receive an annual retainer of $24,000 and an additional
$5,000 for attending each meeting of the Board. In addition to the attendance fee, the Chairman of
the Board will be paid a meeting fee of $1,500 for each Board meeting and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board will be paid a meeting attendance fee of $1,250 for each meeting of
the Audit Committee of the Board. The Trustees are also reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses relating to attendance at meetings of the Board.

Certain Officers of the Fund are also officers of AAl and AFS.

Total Managed Assets: For these purposes, the term Total Managed Assets is defined as the value
of the total assets of the Fund minus the sum of all accrued liabilities of the Fund (other than
aggregate liabilities representing Limited Leverage, as defined below), calculated as of 4:00 p.m.
Eastern time on such day or as of such other time or times as the Board may determine in accordance
with the provisions of applicable law and of the declaration and bylaws of the Fund and with
resolutions of the Board as from time to time in force. Under normal market conditions, the Fund’s
policy is to utilize leverage through Borrowings (as defined below) and through the issuance of
preferred shares (if any) in an amount that represents approximately 33 1/3% of the Fund’s total
assets, including proceeds from such Borrowings and issuances (or approximately 50% of the Fund’s
net assets) (collectively, “Limited Leverage”). “Borrowings” are defined to include: amounts
received by the Fund pursuant to loans from banks or other financial institutions; amounts borrowed
from banks or other parties through reverse repurchase agreements; amounts received by the Fund
from the Fund’s issuance of any senior notes or similar debt securities. Other than with respect to
reverse repurchase agreements, Borrowings do not include trading practices or instruments that,
according to the SEC or its staff, may cause senior securities concerns, and are intended to include
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transactions that are subject to the asset coverage requirements in Section 18 of the 1940 Act for
the issuance of senior securities evidencing indebtedness (e.g., bank borrowings and the Fund’s
issuance of any senior notes or similar securities) and senior securities in the form of stock (e.g., the
Fund’s issuance of preferred shares).

5. DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund intends to make a monthly distribution to common shareholders after payment of interest
on any outstanding borrowings or dividends on any outstanding preferred shares. Distributions to
shareholders are recorded by the Fund on ex-dividend date. The Fund may also retain cash reserves
if deemed appropriate by PrinRei to meet the terms of any leverage or derivatives transactions. Such
distributions shall be administered by DST. While a portion of the Fund’s distributed income may
qualify as qualified dividend income, all or a portion of the Fund’s distributed income may also be
fully taxable. Any such income distributions, as well as any distributions by the Fund of net realized
short-term capital gains, will be taxed as ordinary income. A portion of the distributions the Fund
receives from its investments may be treated as return of capital. While the Fund anticipates
distributing some or all of such return of capital, it is not required to do so in order to maintain its
status as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Code.

The Fund has a managed distribution plan in accordance with AAI’s Section 19(b) exemptive order
described below (the “Managed Distribution Plan”). Under the Managed Distribution Plan, to the
extent that sufficient investment income is not available on a monthly basis, the Fund will make
regular monthly distributions, which may consist of long-term capital gains and/or return of capital
in order to maintain the distribution rate. In accordance with the Managed Distribution Plan, the
Fund made monthly distributions to common shareholders at a fixed monthly rate of $0.105 per
common share.

The amount of the Fund's distributions pursuant to the Managed Distribution Plan are not related
to the Fund's performance and, therefore, investors should not make any conclusions about the
Fund’s investment performance from the amount of the Fund’s distributions or from the terms of
the Fund’s Managed Distribution Plan. The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the Managed
Distribution Plan at any time without notice to shareholders.

AAI has received an order granting an exemption from Section 19(b) of the 1940 Act and Rule 19b-1
thereunder to permit the Fund, subject to certain terms and conditions, to include realized long-term
capital gains as a part of its regular distributions to its stockholders more frequently than would
otherwise be permitted by the 1940 Act (generally once per taxable year). To the extent that the Fund
relies on the exemptive order, the Fund will be required to comply with the terms and conditions
therein, which, among other things, requires the Fund to make certain disclosures to shareholders and
prospective shareholders regarding distributions, and would require the Board to make determinations
regarding the appropriateness of the use of the distribution policy. Under such a distribution policy, it
is possible that the Fund might distribute more than its income and net realized capital gains; therefore,
distributions to shareholders may result in a return of capital. The amount treated as a return of capital
will reduce a shareholder’s adjusted basis in the shareholder’s shares, thereby increasing the potential
gain or reducing the potential loss on the sale of shares. There is no assurance that the Fund will
continue to rely on the exemptive order in the future.

32 www.principalcef.com



Principal Real Estate Income Fund Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 2023

6. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

The Fund is a statutory trust established under the laws of the state of Delaware by an Agreement
and Declaration of Trust dated August 31, 2012, as amended and restated through the date hereof.
The Declaration of Trust provides that the Trustees of the Fund may authorize separate classes of
shares of beneficial interest. The Trustees have authorized an unlimited number of common shares.
The Fund intends to hold annual meetings of common shareholders in compliance with the
requirements of the NYSE.

Additional shares of the Fund may be issued under certain circumstances pursuant to the Fund’s
Dividend Reinvestment Plan, as defined within the Fund’s organizational documents. Additional
information concerning the Dividend Reinvestment Plan is included within this report.

On December 16, 2020, the Board announced that it approved a share repurchase program. Under
the share repurchase program, the Fund could purchase up to 5% of its outstanding common shares
beginning January 19, 2021 in the open market, until January 19, 2022. On December 13, 2021 the
Board announced that it approved a renewal of the share repurchase program, under which the Fund
may purchase up to approximately 4% of its outstanding common shares beginning January 20, 2022
in the open market, until January 20, 2023. On December 19, 2022 the Board announced that it
approved a renewal of the share repurchase program. Under the share repurchase program, the Fund
may purchase up to approximately 3.5% of its outstanding common shares beginning January 21, 2023
in the open market, until January 21, 2024.

The total shares remaining that can be repurchased as of October 31, 2023 are 139,299. During the
year ended October 31, 2023, the Fund repurchased 108,689 shares (1.62% of the shares outstanding
at October 31, 2023) of its shares for a total cost of $1,077,831 at an average discount of 15.85% of net
asset value. The average market price paid per share for the year ended October 31, 2023 was $9.92.

7. PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

For the year October 31, 2023, the cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of securities, excluding
short-term securities, were as follows:

Purchases Sales

$ 41,750,512 $ 52,962,432

8. TAXES

Classification of Distributions: Net investment income/(loss) and net realized gain/(loss) may
differ for financial statement and tax purposes. The character of distributions made during the year
from net investment income or net realized gains may differ from its ultimate characterization for
federal income tax purposes. Also, due to the timing of dividend distributions, the fiscal year in
which amounts are distributed may differ from the fiscal year in which the income or realized gain
was recorded by the Fund.
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The tax character of distributions paid during the year ended October 31, 2023 and October 31,2022
were as follows:

For the Year Ended
October 31, 2023
Ordinary Income S 3,618,615
Return of Capital 4,869,493
Total S 8,488,108
For the Year Ended
October 31, 2022
Ordinary Income S 7,473,490
Return of Capital 650,610
Total S 8,124,100

Components of Earnings: Tax components of distributable earnings are determined in accordance
with income tax regulations which may differ from composition of net assets reported under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Accordingly, for the year ended
October 31, 2023, certain differences were reclassified.

The reclassifications were as follows:

Distributable
Paid-in capital earnings
Principal Real Estate Income Fund S (77,437) S 77,437

The differences are primarily attributed to return of capital distributions received from
underlying securities.

As of October 31, 2023, the components of distributable earnings on a tax basis were as follows:

Accumulated Capital Loss S (33,162,921)
Unrealized Depreciation (20,262,163)
Total S (53,425,084)

Capital Losses: Under current law, capital losses maintain their character as short-term or long-term
and are carried forward to the next tax year without expiration. As of the current fiscal year end,
the following amounts are available as carry forwards to the next tax year:

Short-Term Long-Term
Principal Real Estate Income Fund S 3,663,384 S 29,499,537
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Tax Basis of Investments: Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) of investments based on
federal tax cost as of October 31, 2023, were as follows:

Cost of investments for income tax purposes S 117,669,972
Gross appreciation on investments (excess of value over tax cost) S 2,129,615
Gross depreciation on investments (excess of tax cost over value) (22,389,563)
Net depreciation of foreign currency and derivatives (2,215)

Net unrealized depreciation on investments S (20,262,163)

These differences are primarily attributed to the different tax treatment of wash sales, foreign
currency, and passive foreign investment companies (PFICs).

Federal Income Tax Status: For federal income tax purposes, the Fund currently qualifies, and
intends to remain qualified, as a regulated investment company under the provisions of Subchapter
M of the Code by distributing substantially all of its investment company taxable net income and
realized gain, not offset by capital loss carryforwards, if any, to its shareholders. No provision for
federal income taxes has been made.

As of and during the year ended October 31, 2023, the Fund did not have a liability for any
unrecognized tax benefits. The Fund files U.S. federal, state, and local tax returns as required. The
Fund’s tax returns are subject to examination by the relevant tax authorities until expiration of the
applicable statute of limitations, which is generally three years after the filing of the tax return. Tax
returns for open years have incorporated no uncertain tax positions that require a provision for
income taxes.

The Fund recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits as income

tax expense in the Statement of Operations. During the year ended October 31, 2023, the Fund did
not incur any interest or penalties.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events after the date of the Statements of Assets and Liabilities have been evaluated
through the date the financial statements were issued.

Subsequent to October 31, 2023, the Fund paid the following distributions:

Ex-Date Record Date Payable Date Rate (per share)
November 14, 2023 November 15, 2023 November 30, 2023 $0.105
December 13, 2023 December 14, 2023 December 29, 2023 $0.105

At its recent regularly scheduled meeting, the Board recommended to AAl to waive a portion of their
investment advisory fee pursuant to the services provided under the Investment Advisory
Agreement. Effective November 1, 2023, AAI voluntarily agreed to waive a portion of its advisory
fee that would be payable via the Fund by 0.15% of the Fund’s average daily Managed Assets. PrinRei
agreed to equally share the voluntary waiver, such that the fee received by PrinREi pursuant to the
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Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement will be reduced by 0.075%. The voluntary waiver is in effect for
one year.

On December 18, 2023 the Board announced that it approved a renewal of the share repurchase
program. Under the share repurchase program, the Fund may purchase up to approximately 2.1% of
its outstanding common shares beginning January 21, 2024 in the open market, until January 21, 2025.
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Unless the registered owner of Common Shares elects to receive cash by contacting DST Systems,
Inc. (the “Plan Administrator”), all dividends declared on Common Shares will be automatically
reinvested by the Plan Administrator for shareholders in the Fund’s Automatic Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”), in additional Common Shares. Common Shareholders who elect not
to participate in the Plan will receive all dividends and other distributions in cash paid by check
mailed directly to the shareholder of record (or, if the Common Shares are held in street or other
nominee name, then to such nominee) by the Plan Administrator as dividend disbursing agent.
Participation in the Plan is completely voluntary and may be terminated or resumed at any time
without penalty by notice if received and processed by the Plan Administrator prior to the dividend
record date; otherwise such termination or resumption will be effective with respect to any
subsequently declared dividend or other distribution. Such notice will be effective with respect to a
particular dividend or other distribution (together, a “Dividend”). Some brokers may automatically
elect to receive cash on behalf of Common Shareholders and may re-invest that cash in additional
Common Shares.

The Plan Administrator will open an account for each Common Shareholder under the Plan in the
same name in which such Common Shareholder’s Common Shares are registered. Whenever the
Fund declares a Dividend payable in cash, non-participants in the Plan will receive cash and
participants in the Plan will receive the equivalent in Common Shares. The Common Shares will be
acquired by the Plan Administrator for the participants’ accounts, depending upon the
circumstances described below, either (i) through receipt of additional unissued but authorized
Common Shares from the Fund (“Newly Issued Common Shares”) or (ii) by purchase of outstanding
Common Shares on the open market (“Open-Market Purchases”) on the NYSE or elsewhere. If, on
the payment date for any Dividend, the closing market price plus estimated brokerage commissions
per Common Share is equal to or greater than the NAV per Common Share, the Plan Administrator
will invest the Dividend amount in Newly Issued Common Shares on behalf of the participants. The
number of Newly Issued Common Shares to be credited to each participant’s account will be
determined by dividing the dollar amount of the Dividend by the NAV per Common Share on the
payment date; provided that, if the NAV is less than or equal to 95% of the closing market value on
the payment date, the dollar amount of the Dividend will be divided by 95% of the closing market
price per Common Share on the payment date. If, on the payment date for any Dividend, the NAV
per Common Share is greater than the closing market value plus estimated brokerage commissions,
the Plan Administrator will invest the Dividend amount in Common Shares acquired on behalf of the
participants in Open-Market Purchases.

In the event of a market discount on the payment date for any Dividend, the Plan Administrator will
have until the last business day before the next date on which the Common Shares trade on an “ex-
dividend” basis or 30 days after the payment date for such Dividend, whichever is sooner (the “Last
Purchase Date”), to invest the Dividend amount in Common Shares acquired in Open-Market
Purchases. It is contemplated that the Fund will pay monthly income Dividends. If, before the Plan
Administrator has completed its Open-Market Purchases, the market price per Common Share
exceeds the NAV per Common Share, the average per Common Share purchase price paid by the
Plan Administrator may exceed the NAV of the Common Shares, resulting in the acquisition of fewer
Common Shares than if the Dividend had been paid in Newly Issued Common Shares on the Dividend
payment date. Because of the foregoing difficulty with respect to Open-Market Purchases, the Plan
provides that if the Plan Administrator is unable to invest the full Dividend amount in Open-Market
Purchases during the purchase period or if the market discount shifts to a market premium during
the purchase period, the Plan Administrator may cease making Open-Market Purchases and may
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invest the uninvested portion of the Dividend amount in Newly Issued Common Shares at the NAV
per Common Share at the close of business on the Last Purchase Date provided that, if the NAV is
less than or equal to 95% of the then current market price per Common Share, the dollar amount of
the Dividend will be divided by 95% of the market price on the payment date for purposes of
determining the number of shares issuable under the Plan.

The Plan Administrator maintains all shareholders’ accounts in the Plan and furnishes written
confirmation of all transactions in the accounts, including information needed by shareholders for
tax records. Common Shares in the account of each Plan participant will be held by the Plan
Administrator on behalf of the Plan participant, and each shareholder proxy will include those shares
purchased or received pursuant to the Plan. The Plan Administrator will forward all proxy solicitation
materials to participants and vote proxies for shares held under the Plan in accordance with the
instructions of the participants.

In the case of Common Shareholders such as banks, brokers or nominees which hold shares for
others who are the beneficial owners, the Plan Administrator will administer the Plan on the basis
of the number of Common Shares certified from time to time by the record shareholder’s name and
held for the account of beneficial owners who participate in the Plan.

There will be no brokerage charges with respect to Common Shares issued directly by the Fund.
However, each participant will pay a pro rata share of brokerage commissions incurred in connection
with Open-Market Purchases. The automatic reinvestment of Dividends will not relieve participants
of any federal, state or local income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such
Dividends. Participants that request a sale of Common Shares through the Plan Administrator are
subject to brokerage commissions.

The Fund reserves the right to amend or terminate the Plan. There is no direct service charge to
participants with regard to purchases in the Plan; however, the Fund reserves the right to amend
the Plan to include a service charge payable by the participants.

All correspondence or questions concerning the Plan should be directed to the Plan Administrator.
430 West 7th Street, Kansas City, MO 64105-1407 or toll free: 1-855-552-6280
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At the September 18, 2023 meeting (“Meeting”) of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Principal
Real Estate Income Fund (the “Fund”), the Board, including those Trustees who are not “interested
persons” of the Trust (the “Independent Trustees”), as that term is defined in the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), approved ALPS Advisors, Inc. (the “Adviser”)
and Principal Real Estate Investors, LLC, (the “Sub-Adviser”) to serve as the Trust’s investment
adviser and sub-adviser, respectively, and approved the renewal of the investment advisory
agreement between the Adviser and the Trust, and the sub-advisory agreement between Sub-
Adviser and the Adviser with respect to the Trust (collectively, the “Advisory Agreements”), upon
the terms and conditions set forth therein. In connection with considering the approval of the
renewal of the Advisory Agreements, the Independent Trustees met in executive session with
independent counsel, who provided assistance and advice.

Although not meant to be all-inclusive, the following discussion summarizes the factors considered
and conclusions reached by the Trustees in the executive sessions and at the Meeting in determining
to approve the Advisory Agreements

Nature, extent, and quality of services. In examining the nature, extent and quality of the
investment advisory services provided by the Adviser, the Trustees considered the qualifications,
experience and capability of the Adviser’s management and other personnel and the extent of care
and conscientiousness with which the Adviser performs its duties. In this regard, the Trustees
considered, among other matters, the process by which the Adviser performs oversight of the Fund,
including ongoing due diligence regarding product structure, resources, personnel, technology,
performance, compliance and oversight of the Sub-Adviser.

With respect to the nature, extent and quality of the investment advisory services provided by the
Sub-Adviser, the Trustees considered the Sub-Adviser’s investment management process it uses in
managing the assets of the Fund, including the experience and capability of the Sub-Adviser’s
management and other personnel responsible for the portfolio management of the Fund and
compliance with the Fund’s investment policies and restrictions. The Trustees also considered the
favorable assessment provided by the Adviser as to the nature and quality of the services provided
by the Sub-Adviser and the ability of the Sub-Adviser to fulfill its contractual obligations.

Based on the totality of the information considered, the Trustees concluded that the Fund was likely
to benefit from the nature, extent and quality of the Adviser’s and the Sub-Adviser’s services, and
that the Adviser and the Sub-Adviser have the ability to provide these services based on their
respective experience, operations and current resources.

Investment performance of the Fund, the Adviser and the Sub-Adviser. The Board reviewed
the Fund’s investment performance over time and compared that performance to other funds in its
peer group. In making its comparisons, the Board utilized a report from Fuse, an independent
provider of investment company data. The Board considered the expanded peer group in the Fuse
report and acknowledged that, even with the expansion of the peer group, there were still no peers
in the market with a mirrored investment strategy. The Board also considered the temporary 15bps
reduction in the advisory fee agreed to by the Board, Adviser and Sub-Adviser due to the Fund'’s
underperformance. The Board also considered the views of the Adviser and the Sub-Adviser that in
light of the Fund’s dynamic allocation strategy that permits it to vary its allocation to both CMBS and
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other U.S. and non-U.S. real estate-related securities, such as REITs and REIT-like entities, there are
no directly comparable peer funds that utilize a similar investment strategy.

Costs of services and profits realized, and comparison with other advisory contracts. The
Board considered the fees payable under the Advisory Agreements. The Board reviewed the
information compiled by Fuse comparing the Fund’s contractual management fee rate (on managed
assets) and net management fee rate (on both managed assets and common assets—which includes
advisory and sub-advisory and administrative service fees—as well as the Fund’s net total expense
ratios) to other funds in its expense group. The Board again noted the expanded Fuse peer group
and acknowledged the correlation between higher fees and increased complexity in peer funds’
investment strategies. The Board also considered information provided by the Adviser comparing
the Fund’s contractual management fee rate (and the Adviser’s share of the contractual
management fee rate) to comparable funds advised by the Adviser.

The Trustees also considered that the fee paid to the Sub-Adviser is paid out of the fees paid to the
Adviser and that no separate fee for sub-advisory services is charged to the Fund and that the Sub-
Advisory Agreement was the subject of arm’s length negotiations between the parties. The Trustees
also considered the fees charged by the Sub-Adviser to other accounts managed using a CMBS
strategy, and to other accounts managed using a REIT strategy, during which it was noted that the
Sub-Adviser differentiated the types of services that the Fund receives, noting that the Sub-Adviser
does not provide a leverage strategy or a dynamic asset allocation strategy for the other accounts,
and does not utilize derivative instruments for that account, in each case unlike the mandate it has
with respect to the Fund. The Trustees also considered the temporary 15bps reduction in the
advisory fee that was agreed to during the Meeting. The Trustees also considered the Adviser’s
opinion that the compensation payable to the Sub-Adviser is reasonable, appropriate and fair in
light of the nature and quality of the services provided to the Fund.

The Board reviewed the Meeting Materials it received from the Adviser regarding its revenues and
expenses in connection with the services provided to the Fund, both solely with respect to the
Adviser, as well as together with revenues earned by the Adviser’s affiliates, ALPS Fund Services, Inc.
(“AFS”) (in its capacity as administrator of the Fund), and SS&C GIDS, Inc. (in its capacity as transfer
agent of the Fund). The Board noted that the profitability of the Adviser was included both with and
without distribution expenses. They further noted that both (i) the process by which the Adviser
determines profitability and (ii) the assumptions the Adviser uses in determining profitability are the
same as those used by the Adviser for its other managed registered investment companies. The
Board next reviewed the Adviser's summary regarding the Fund’s expenses and allocation
methodology taking note of the Adviser’s increased corporate overhead expenses.

The Trustees then reviewed the profitability information provided by the Adviser and the Sub-
Adviser noting that, despite the aforementioned increase in corporate overhead, the Fund remained
profitable for the Adviser. The Board further noted that the Sub-Adviser’s profitability was not a
significant factor considered by the Board, as the sub-advisory fee is paid by the Adviser out of the
advisory fee paid to it by the Fund, and not by the Fund.

Economies of scale. With respect to whether economies of scale are realized by the Adviser and
the Sub-Adviser and whether management fee levels reflect these economies of scale for the benefit
of Fund investors, the Board considered the Adviser’s view that adding breakpoints would not be
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appropriate at this time and that any increases in the Fund’s assets are primarily attributable to
market appreciation and dividend reinvestments, rather than raising new capital. With respect to
whether assets would be expected to increase, to a level such that economies of scale might be
realized by AAl and the Sub-Adviser, the Board considered the Adviser’s and Sub-Adviser’s view that
the Fund’s closed-end structure limited the likelihood of significant future increases in the Fund’s
asset levels which would reach the point where the imposition of breakpoints in the management
fees would be appropriate.

Indirect benefits. The Board considered whether there were any “fall-out” or ancillary benefits
that may accrue to the Adviser or Sub-Adviser or their affiliates as a result of their relationships with
the Fund. The Trustees considered that both the Adviser and Sub-Adviser noted their belief that
they would not experience any “fall-out” benefits other than as noted above.

After evaluation of the performance, fee and expense information and the profitability, ancillary
benefits and other considerations as described above, and in light of the nature, extent and quality
of services provided by the Adviser and the Sub-Adviser, the Board concluded that the level of fees
to be paid to each of the Adviser and the Sub-Adviser was reasonable.

In summary, based on the various considerations discussed above, the Board determined that
approval of the renewal of the Advisory Agreements was in the best interests of the Fund.

Annual Report | October 31, 2023 41



Trustees & Officers
October 31, 2023 (Unaudited)

Principal Real Estate Income Fund

Information About Each Trustee and the Fund’s Officers

The table below includes information regarding the Fund's trustees and officers, and their principal
occupations and other affiliations during the past five years. The address for all trustees is 1290
Broadway, Suite 1000, Denver, CO 80203. The "independent trustees" consist of those trustees who
are not "interested persons" of the Fund, as that term is defined under the 1940 Act.

INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES
Number of
Funds in Other
Term of Fund Directorships®@
Name and Position(s) Office and Principal Complex(®  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past 5 Years by Trustee Past 5 Years
Rick A. Trustee Term expires Chief Strategy Officer, 24 Segall Bryant &
Pederson in 2024. Has Bow River Capital (2003 Hamill Trust (14
(1952) served since — present); President, funds); ALPS ETF
April 2013.  Foundation Properties Trust (23 funds).
Inc. (1994 — Present)
Board Member, Kivu
Consulting (2018-
2022); Advisory Board
Member, Citywide
Banks (2017-present);
Board Member, Strong-
Bridge Consulting,
(2015 —2019); Board
Member, IRI/ODMS
Holdings LLC, (2017 —
2019); Trustee,
National Western Stock
Show (2010 — present);
Director, History
Colorado (2015-2019);
Trustee, Boettcher
Foundation,
(2018 — present).
Jerry G.  Trustee Term expires President and owner of 9 Clough Global
Rutledge in 2026. Has Rutledge’s Inc. (retail Allocation Funds
(1944) served since clothing business); (1 fund); Clough
April 2013.  Regent of the Global Equity
University of Colorado Fund (1 fund);
(1994 - 2007); Director, Clough Global
University of Colorado Opportunities
Hospital (2007 — 2017). Fund (1 fund);
Financial Investors
Trust (29 funds).
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Number of
Funds in Other

Term of Fund Directorships@
Name and Position(s) Office and Principal Complex(  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past 5 Years by Trustee Past 5 Years
Ernest). Chairman  Term expires Formerly the Research 1 The Select Sector
Scalberg  and Trustee in 2025. Has Professor and Director SPDR Trust (11
(1945) served as of the GLOBE Center, funds) 1998 -

Trustee Monterey Institute of 2021.

since April International Studies

2013. Has (2009 — 2014);

served as Associate Vice

Chairman President for External

since July Programs and Dean of

2017. Fisher Graduate School
of International
Business (2001 -
2009); Past Chairman
of the Board of the
Foundation,
International
University in Geneva
(IUG), Switzerland
(2009 - 2019); and
currently Trustee,
Southern Oregon
University Foundation,
and Chairman of the
Investment
Committee.
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Number of
Funds in Other
Term of Fund Directorships@
Name and Position(s) Office and Principal Complex(  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past 5 Years by Trustee Past 5 Years
Jeremy Trustee Term expires Jeremy Held, CFA, is 1 Bow River Capital
Held in 2024. Has currently responsible Evergreen Fund (1
(1974) served since for Bow River Capital’s fund)
December  registered asset
2017. management business

and serves as the
President and
Chairman of the
Investment Committee
for the Bow River
Capital Evergreen Fund
(private equity
investment fund). Prior
to joining Bow River
Capital in 2019, Mr.
Held was the Director
of Research and Chief
Investment Officer
(CIO) at ALPS

Advisors. Mr. Held
began his career at
ALPS in 1996 and
helped lead a variety of
business initiatives over
two decades, including
the launch of the firm’s
asset management
business in 2007.
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Number of
Funds in Other
Term of Fund Directorships@
Name and Position(s) Office and Principal Complex(  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past 5 Years by Trustee Past 5 Years
Kathryn  Trustee ¥  Term Expires Ms. Burns is Vice 8 ALPS Variable
Burns and in 2025. Has  President, Director of Investment Trust
(1976) President®® served as Fund Operations of AAI (7 Funds)
President (since 2018). Ms. Burns
since served as the Fund’s
September  Treasurer from
2019 and as September 2018 until
a Trustee September 2019. From

since January 2013 to 2018, she

2022. served as Vice
President and Fund
Controller at ALPS Fund
Services. Because of
her position with AAI,
Ms. Burns is deemed an
affiliate of the Fund as
defined under the 1940
Act. Ms. Burns is also
Treasurer of ALPS ETF
Trust and President of
ALPS Variable
Investment Trust. From
June 2018 to
November 2021 she
also served as
Treasurer of Boulder
Growth & Income
Fund, Inc. From June
2019 to September
2022 she served as
President of RiverNorth
Opportunities
Fund, Inc.
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OFFICERS®
Number of
Funds in Other

Term of Fund Directorships®@
Name and Position(s) Office and Complex(  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Principal Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past5 Years by Trustee  Past 5 Years
Robert President’® Has served Rob McClure joined SS&C N/A N/A
McClure since ALPS Advisors in January
(1969) September 2020 and serves as a

2023. Director of Research. In
this role Rob is responsible
for investment manager
research and oversight as
well as sales and
distribution support and
new product
development. Prior to
joining ALPS, Rob served
for five years as Client
Portfolio Manager at
Oppenheimer Funds,
where he worked closely
the firm’s distribution
organization to represent
Oppenheimer’s domestic
value equity team with
external clients. Prior to
joining Oppenheimer
Funds, Rob spent 17 years
as a Director in the HOLT
division at Credit Suisse in
New York, where he led a
team focused on providing
HOLT's proprietary
corporate performance
and valuation platform to
hedge funds, mutual funds
and pension funds.

Rob holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics
from the University of
lllinois at Urbana-
Champaign and a Master
of Business Administration
from Loyola University-
Chicago.
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Number of
Funds in Other

Term of Fund Directorships®
Name and Position(s) Office and Complex(  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Principal Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past5 Years by Trustee  Past 5 Years
Matthew Chief Has served  Mr. Sutula previously N/A N/A
Sutula Compliance since served as the Fund’s
(1985) Officer December  interim Chief Compliance

(“cco”) 2019. Officer from September

2019 to December 2019.
Mr. Sutula joined ALPS in
2012 and currently
serves as Chief
Compliance Officer of
AAI. Prior to his current
role, Mr. Sutula served as
Compliance Manager
and Senior Compliance
Analyst for AAI, as well
as Compliance Analyst
for ALPS Fund Services,
Inc. Prior to joining ALPS,
he spent seven years at
Morningstar, Inc. in
various analyst roles
supporting the registered
investment company
databases. Because of
his position with ALPS,
Mr. Sutula is deemed an
affiliate of the Fund as
defined under the 1940
Act. Mr. Sutula is also
Chief Compliance Officer
of ALPS ETF Trust, ALPS
Variable Investment
Trust, Liberty All-Star
Equity Fund and Liberty
All-Star Growth Fund,
Inc. From September
2019 to September 2022
he also served as Chief
Compliance Officer of
RiverNorth Opportunities
Fund, Inc.
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Number of
Funds in
Fund
Complex("
Overseen
by Trustee

Principal Occupation(s)
During Past 5 Years

Other
Directorships@
Held by Trustee

During

Past 5 Years

Erich
Rettinger
(1985)

Treasurer

Has served
since
December
2021

Mr. Rettinger is Vice N/A
President of AAI (since
2021) and serves as
Treasurer of Liberty All-
Star Equity Fund, Liberty
All-Star Growth Fund,
Inc., and ALPS Variable
Investment Trust. From
December 2021 to
October 2022  he also
served as Treasurer of
RiverNorth Opportunities
Fund, Inc. Because of his
position with AAI, Mr.
Rettinger is deemed an
affiliate of the Fund as
defined under the 1940
Act. From 2013-2021, he
served as Vice President
and Fund Controller of
ALPS Fund Services.

N/A
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Number of
Funds in Other

Term of Fund Directorships®
Name and Position(s) Office and Complex(  Held by Trustee
Year of Held with  Length of Principal Occupation(s) Overseen During
Birth Registrant Time Served During Past5 Years by Trustee  Past 5 Years
Nicholas Secretary Has served  Mr. Adams is Principal N/A N/A
Adams since Legal Counsel at SS&C
(1983) December  Technologies and has

2022. served in that role since

2022. Mr. Adams is also
Secretary of the Alpha
Alternative Assets Fund
and Principal Real Estate
Income Fund, as well as
Assistant Secretary of
the WesMark Funds.
Prior to this he was an
Associate Attorney at
Arnold, Newbold Sollars
and Hollins, P.C. (2020-
2022) as well as Stanziola
Estate Law (2018-2020).
Mr. Adams received his
Juris Doctor from
Washburn University
School of Law in 2013
and his Bachelor of
Science degree from
Wichita State University
in 2010.
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The term “Fund Complex” means two or more registered investment companies that:

@ hold themselves out to investors as related companies for purposes of investment and
investor services, or

®  have a common investment adviser or that have an investment adviser that is an affiliated
person of the investment adviser of any of the other registered investment companies.

The numbers enclosed parenthetically represent the number of funds overseen in each
directorship that the Trustee has held. Regarding ALPS ETF Trust and ALPS Variable
Investment Trust, all funds are included in the total funds in the Fund Complex column. As to
Financial Investors Trust, 8 funds are included in the total funds in the Fund Complex column.

Officers are elected annually. Each officer will hold such office until a successor has been
elected by the Board of Trustees.

Kathryn Burns resigned as Trustee on September 5, 2023.

Kathryn Burns resigned as President on September 5, 2023 and Robert McClure was appointed
as President on September 5, 2023.
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PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

The Fund files a complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) for the first and third quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-PORT within 60 days
after the end of the period. Copies of the Fund’s Form N-PORT are available without a charge, upon
request, by contacting the Fund at 1-855-838-9485 and on the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov.

PROXY VOTING

A description of the Fund’s proxy voting policies and procedures is available (1) without charge, upon
request, by calling 1-855-838-9485, (2) on the Fund’s website located at http://www.principalcef.com,
or (3) on the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. Information regarding how the Fund voted proxies
relating to portfolio securities during the twelve- month period ended June 30th is available on the SEC’s
website at http://www.sec.gov.

SECTION 19(A) NOTICES

The following table sets forth the estimated amount of the sources of distribution for purposes of
Section 19 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the related rules adopted
there under. The Fund estimates the following percentages, of the total distribution amount per
share, attributable to (i) current and prior fiscal year net investment income, (ii) net realized short-
term capital gain, (iii) net realized long-term capital gain and (iv) return of capital or other capital
source as a percentage of the total distribution amount. These percentages are disclosed for the
fiscal year-to-date cumulative distribution amount per share for the Fund. The amounts and sources
of distributions reported in these 19(a) notices are only estimates and not for tax reporting
purposes. The actual amounts and sources of the amounts for tax reporting purposes will depend
upon the Fund’s investment experience during the remainder of the calendar year and may be
subject to changes based on tax regulations. The Fund will send you a Form 1099-DIV for the
calendar year that will tell you how to report these distributions for federal income tax purposes.

Percentage of the Total
Per Share Cumulative Distributions Cumulative Distributions for the
for the Year Ended October 31, 2023 Year Ended October 31, 2023
Short-  Long- Short-  Long-
Net Term  Term Return Total Net Term  Term Return  Total
Investment Capital Capital of Per Investment Capital Capital of Per
Income  Gains  Gains Capital Share Income  Gains Gains Capital Share

$0.5293 $0.00 $0.00 $0.7307 $1.2600 42.01% 0.00% 0.00% 57.99% 100.00%

Annual Report | October 31, 2023 51



Principal Real Estate Income Fund Additional Information
October 31, 2023 (Unaudited)

UNAUDITED TAX INFORMATION

Of the distributions paid by the Fund from ordinary income for the calendar year ended December
31, 2022, the following percentages met the requirements to be treated as qualifying for the
corporate dividends received deduction and qualified dividend income:

Dividend Received Deduction  Qualified Dividend Income
Principal Real Estate Income Fund 0.08% 5.07%

Of the distributions paid by the Fund for the calendar year ended December 31, 2022, pursuant to
Section 852(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Fund had no long-term capital gain dividends.

In early 2023, if applicable, shareholders of record should have received this information for the

distributions paid to them by the Fund during the calendar year 2022 via Form 1099. The Fund will notify
shareholders in early 2024 of amounts paid to them by the Fund, if any, during the calendar year 2023.

LICENSING AGREEMENT

Morningstar

The Fund is not sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by Morningstar, Inc. or any of its affiliates
(all such entities, collectively, “Morningstar Entities”). The Morningstar Entities make no
representation or warranty, express or implied, to the owners of the Fund or any member of the
public regarding the advisability of investing in mutual funds generally or in the Fund in particular or
the ability of the Morningstar Index Data to track general mutual fund market performance.

THE MORNINGSTAR ENTITIES DO NOT GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY AND/OR THE COMPLETENESS

OF THE MORNINGSTAR INDEX DATA OR ANY DATA INCLUDED THEREIN AND MORNINGSTAR
ENTITIES SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INTERRUPTIONS THEREIN.

CUSTODIAN AND TRANSFER AGENT

State Street Bank and Trust Company, located at State Street Financial Center, One Lincoln Street,
Boston, MA 02111, serves as the Fund’s custodian and will maintain custody of the securities and
cash of the Fund.

DST Systems, Inc., located at 333 West 11th Street, 5th Floor, Kansas City, Missouri 64105, serves as
the Fund’s transfer agent and registrar.

LEGAL COUNSEL

Dechert LLP, located at 1095 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036, serves as legal
counsel to the Trust.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Cohen & Company, Ltd. is the independent registered public accounting firm for the Fund.
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The following information in this annual report is a summary of certain information about the Fund
and changes since the Fund’s annual report dated January 6, 2023 (the “prior disclosure date”). This
information may not reflect all of the changes that have occurred since you purchased the Fund.

Investment Objective. The Fund’s investment objective is to seek to provide high current income,
with capital appreciation as a secondary objective, by investing in commercial real estate-related
securities. There can be no assurance that the Fund will achieve its investment objective.

Principal Investment Strategies.

Under normal market conditions, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in commercial
real estate-related securities, primarily consisting of commercial mortgage backed securities
(“CMBS”) and other U.S. and non-U.S. real estate-related securities (primarily real estate investment
trusts (“REITs”) or REIT-like entities). Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest between 40%
and 70% of its total assets in CMBS and will invest between 30% and 60% in other real estate-related
securities (including REITs). A CMBS is a type of mortgage-backed security that is secured by a loan
(or loans) on one or more interests in commercial real estate property. REITs are pooled investment
vehicles that invest in income producing real estate, real estate-related loans, or other types of real
estate interests. The Fund will invest in CMBS and other real estate-related securities at new
issuance and in the secondary market which the Fund’s investment subadviser, Principal Real Estate
Investors, LLC (“PrinREI”), believes will generate attractive risk- adjusted current yields and the
potential for capital appreciation for the Fund. The Fund will limit its investments in CMBS to issuers
organized in the United States. The Fund will invest in REITs and other real estate-related securities
of issuers organized in a number of countries, including the United States.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade and below investment grade debt securities (i.e.,
“junk bonds”). With respect to CMBS deals issued prior to 2009, the Fund may only invest in CMBS
securities originally rated no lower than “A-" by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P”) or
Fitch Ratings, Inc., (“Fitch”), or “A3” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”). In addition and
also with respect to CMBS deals prior to 2009, it is expected that the Fund will invest no more than
20% of its total assets in CMBS securities originally rated lower than “AAA” by S&P or Fitch, or “Aaa”
by Moody’s. No investment in an individual CMBS bond may comprise 10% or more of the Fund’s
total assets.

The Fund’s net asset value will vary and its distribution rate may vary and both may be affected by
numerous factors, including changes in the market spread over a specified benchmark, market
interest rates and performance of the broader equity markets. Fluctuations in net asset value may
be magnified as a result of the Fund’s use of leverage. An investment in the Fund may not be
appropriate for all investors.

Use of Leverage

The Fund generally will seek to enhance the level of its cash distributions to holders of Common
Shares (“Common Shareholders”) through the use of leverage, which may include Borrowings (as
defined below), the issuance of preferred shares, and the use of derivatives or certain investment
techniques. Under normal market conditions, the Fund’s policy is to utilize leverage through
Borrowings and the issuance of preferred shares (if any) in an amount that represents approximately
33 1/3% of the Fund’s total assets, including proceeds from such Borrowings and issuances (or
approximately 50% of the Fund’s net assets). However, based on market conditions at the time, the
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Fund may use such leverage in amounts that represent less than 33 1/3% of the Fund’s total assets.
“Borrowings” are defined as: amounts received by the Fund pursuant to loans from banks or other
financial institutions; amounts borrowed from banks or other parties using reverse repurchase
agreements; or amounts received by the Fund from the Fund’s issuance of any senior notes or
similar debt securities. Other than with respect to reverse repurchase agreements, Borrowings do
not include trading practices or instruments that, according to the SEC or its staff, may cause senior
securities concerns.

The Fund currently leverages through the use of bank borrowings, but may use other similar term
loans and/or reverse repurchase obligations. In connection with the Fund’s use of leverage, PrinREI
may seek to hedge the associated interest rate risks through derivative instruments, which may
include interest rate swaps, caps, floors, collars, rate forwards and interest rate futures (and options
thereon). PrinREl is not required to engage in any hedging techniques, and there can be no assurance
that any interest rate hedging transactions, if undertaken, will be successful, and such transactions
may adversely affect the Fund’s achievement of its investment objective. There is no guarantee that
the Fund will engage in hedging transactions.

Effects of Leverage

The following table is furnished in response to requirements of the SEC. It is designed to illustrate
the effect of leverage on Common Share return, assuming investment portfolio total returns
(comprised of income and changes in the value of securities held in the Fund’s portfolio) of minus
10% to plus 10%. These assumed investment portfolio returns are hypothetical figures and are not
necessarily indicative of the investment portfolio total returns experienced or expected to be
experienced by us. Further, the assumed investment portfolio total returns are after (net of) all of
the Fund’s expenses other than expenses associated with leverage); but such leverage expenses are
deducted when determining the Common Share return. See “Risks.” The table further reflects the
use of leverage representing 33 1/3% of the Fund’s total assets and estimated leverage costs of
6.46%.

Assumed Portfolio Return -10.00% -5.00% 0.00% 5.00% 10.00%
Common Share Total Return -18.16% -10.68% -3.20% 4.27% 11.75%

Corresponding Common Share return is composed of two elements: Common Share dividends paid
by the Fund (the amount of which is largely determined by the Fund’s net distributable income after
paying interest or dividends on the Fund’s Limited Leverage) and gains or losses on the value of the
securities the Fund owns. As required by SEC rules, the table above assumes that the Fund is more
likely to suffer capital losses than to enjoy capital appreciation. For example, to assume a total return
of 0% would assume that the distributions the Fund receives on its investments are entirely offset
by losses in the value of those securities.

Risks

Investment and Market Risk. An investment in Common Shares is subject to investment risk,
including the possible loss of the entire principal amount invested. An investment in Common Shares
represents an indirect investment in the securities owned by the Fund, which are generally traded
on a securities exchange or in the over-the-counter markets. The value of these securities, like other
market investments, may move up or down, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably. Overall stock
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market risks may also affect the NAV of the Fund. Factors such as domestic and foreign economic
growth and market conditions, interest rate levels and political events affect the securities markets.
The Common Shares at any point in time may be worth less than the original investment, even after
taking into account any reinvestment of dividends and distributions.

Risks Associated with Investment in Commercial Real Estate Loans. Investments in CMBS are
subject to the various risks which relate to the pool of underlying assets in which the CMBS
represents an interest. CMBS may be backed by obligations (including certificates of participation in
obligations) that are principally secured by commercial real estate loans or interests therein having
a multi-family or commercial use, such as shopping malls, other retail space, office buildings,
industrial or warehouse properties, hotels, nursing homes and senior living centers. CMBS are
subject to particular risks, including lack of standardized terms, shorter maturities than residential
mortgage loans and payment of all or substantially all of the principal only at maturity rather than
regular amortization of principal. Securities backed by commercial real estate assets are subject to
securities market risks as well as risks similar to those of direct ownership of commercial real estate
loans because those securities derive their cash flows and value from the performance of the
commercial real estate underlying such investments and/or the owners of such real estate. These
risks include:

. Declines in the value of real estate;

. Declines in rental or occupancy rates;

. Risks related to general and local economic conditions;

¢  Dependency on management skills of the borrower or third-party property management
firm;

. Risk depending on the timing of cash flows from the underlying mortgage properties;

. Possible lack of available mortgage funds to refinance the mortgage loans at maturity;

. Overbuilding;

. Extended vacancies in properties;

. Increases in property taxes and operating expenses, including energy costs;

. Changes in zoning laws and other governmental rules, regulation and fiscal policies;
compliance with existing legal and regulatory requirements, including environ-mental
controls and regulations;

. Risks related to the ability of a property to attract and retain tenants, including those
listed in this section, as well as the ability of a property owner to pay leasing commissions,
provide adequate maintenance and insurance, pay tenant improvement costs and make
other tenant concessions;

e Expensesincurred in the cleanup of environmental problems;

e  Costs and delays involved in enforcing rights of a property owner against tenants that
default under the terms of leases or seek protection of bankruptcy laws;

. Risks related to the type and use of a particular commercial property, e.g., hospitals,
nursing homes, hospitality properties and other property types;

. Casualty or condemnation losses, including where liability and casualty insurance does
not provide full protection;
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. Changes in interest rates, tightening lending standards and the availability of credit to
refinance such loans at or prior to maturity;

. Changes in tax laws;
. Terrorist threats and attacks;
. Social unrest and civil disturbances; and

. Weather and other acts of God.

The above factors may impact the ability of a borrower to meet its obligations on the loan. Certain
loans may default which could result in either a foreclosure of the property or a restructure of the
loan. Such actions may impact the amount of proceeds ultimately derived from the loan, and the
timing of receipt of such proceeds may be shorter or longer than the original term of the loan. Losses
on the loans will negatively impact the most subordinate CMBS classes first. Any proceeds received
from the loans will generally be applied to the most senior bonds outstanding before any payments
are made to the subordinate bonds. The occurrence of defaults and losses on the loans may result
in downgrades of the CMBS by the NRSROs.

In addition the following risks apply to investments in CMBS (several of which also apply more
generally to investments in debt securities and other asset backed securities):

Credit Quality and Selection. In addition to the risks listed above, CMBS are affected by the quality
of the credit extended.

As a result, the quality of the CMBS is dependent upon the selection of the commercial mortgages
for each issuance and the cash flow generated by the commercial real estate assets. Risk factors
related to the foregoing include:

. Potential lack of diversification in certain CMBS issuances;

. Dependence on the skills, decision-making and experience of the various issuers in
selecting the commercial mortgages backing the issuances; and

. Adverse borrower selection within an issuance.

Amortization, Refinance or Sale. Commercial real estate loans are generally not fully amortizing,
which means that they may have a significant principal balance or “balloon” payment due on
maturity. Commercial loans with a balloon payment involve a greater risk to a lender than fully
amortizing loans because the ability of a borrower to make a balloon payment typically will depend
upon its ability either to fully refinance the loan or to sell the property securing the loan at a price
sufficient to permit the borrower to make the balloon payment. The ability of a borrower to effect
a refinancing or a sale will be affected by a number of factors, including the value of the property,
the level of available mortgage rates at the time of sale or refinancing, the borrower’s equity in the
property, the financial condition and operating history of the property and the borrower, tax laws,
prevailing economic conditions and the availability of credit for loans secured by the specific type of
property. In addition, commercial real estate loans generally are non-recourse to borrowers. In the
event of foreclosure on a commercial real estate loan, the value of the collateral securing the loan
at the time of foreclosure may be less than the principal amount outstanding on the loan plus
accrued but unpaid interest thereon, resulting in a non-collectable deficiency. Losses realized on the
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sale of foreclosed properties could negatively impact the credit enhancement provided to certain
CMBS investments and eventually lead to a loss of principal.

Lack of Sufficient Investment Opportunities. It is possible that the Fund will never be fully invested
if the Fund does not receive its desired allocations of investments or PrinREI does not find a sufficient
volume of investments it deems appropriate for the Fund. New issuances of CMBS were halted
during the recent global liquidity crisis. While new CMBS issuances have resumed, it remains
uncertain how robust the market will become or the impact any potential regulatory reform may
have on the CMBS market. Such market conditions could impact the valuations of the Fund'’s
investments and impair PrinREl’s ability to buy securities for the Fund. The business of acquiring the
type of investments targeted by the Fund is highly competitive and involves a high degree of
uncertainty.

Lack of Operating Control of Underlying Investments. The day-to-day operations of the real
estate companies and properties underlying the commercial real estate loans that secure the Fund’s
CMBS investments will be the responsibility of the owners and developers of such companies and
properties. Although PrinREI will be responsible for monitoring the performance of each CMBS
investment, there can be no assurance that the owners and developers will be able to operate the
underlying companies or properties in accordance with their business plans or the expectations of
the Fund.

Lack of Control Over CMBS. The Fund will generally not have a right to vote or to make decisions
with respect to the administration of the CMBS investments or servicing of the commercial real
estate loans that underlie the Fund’s CMBS investments. Those decisions will generally be made by
one of the master servicer, special servicer, trustee or a controlling party. Any decision made by one
of those parties may not be in the best interest of the Fund and, even if that decision is determined
to be in the Fund’s best interests by that party, may be contrary to the decision that the Fund would
have made and may negatively affect the Fund’s interests.

Due Diligence Risks of CMBS. Before making any investments in CMBS, PrinREI will assess the
factors that it believes will determine the success of that investment. This process is particularly
important and subjective because there may be little information publicly available about the CMBS
other than what is available in the prospectuses, offering memoranda or similar disclosure
documentation associated with the CMBS. The Fund cannot provide any assurances that these due
diligence processes will uncover all relevant facts of the underlying commercial real estate loans or
that any investment in a CMBS issuance will be successful.

Credit Ratings — Rating Agencies. The Fund can invest in CMBS rated “investment grade” or
“below investment grade” by an NRSRO. The term “investment grade” denotes a credit rating of
BBB- or higher by S&P, or Baa3 or higher by Moody’s, or BBB- or higher by Fitch, or BBB- or higher
by Kroll Bond Rating Agency, Inc., or BBB (low) or higher by Dominion Bond Rating Service or BBB-
or higher by Morningstar Credit Ratings, LLC (“Morningstar”) or such comparable rating by any other
NRSRO. The term “below investment grade” (commonly referred to as “junk bonds” or “high yield
securities”) denotes a credit rating of BB+ or lower by S&P, or Bal or lower by Moody’s, or BB+ or
lower by Fitch, or BB+ or lower by Kroll Bond Rating Agency, Inc., or BB (high) by Dominion Bond
Rating Services or BB+ or lower by Morningstar or such comparable rating by any other NRSRO. A
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credit rating is a current assessment of the probability of timely payment of interest and ultimate
recovery of principal. The ratings are based on current information furnished by the issuer or
obtained by the NRSRO from other sources the credit rating agency considers reliable. NRSROs do
not perform an audit in connection with any rating and may, on occasion, rely on unaudited financial
information. NRSROs may take into consideration obligors such as guarantors, insurers or lessees.

Use of Credit Rating. A credit rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell or hold a security,
inasmuch as it does not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular investor. Credit
ratings do not constitute a guarantee of the quality of CMBS. The rating assigned to a security
reflects only the NRSRO’s opinion. The ratings may be changed, suspended or withdrawn as a result
of changes in, or unavailability of, sufficient information or for other circumstances. A change in a
bond’s credit rating typically will affect the price of the bond. The use of credit ratings for evaluating
bonds involves certain risks. For example, credit ratings evaluate the safety of principal and interest
payments, not the market value risk of bonds. Also, NRSROs may fail to change credit ratings in a
timely manner to reflect recent events. If a NRSRO changes the rating of a security held by the Fund,
the Fund may retain the security if PrinREI believes such retention is in the best interest of the
Fund'’s investors.

Risks Associated with the Insolvency of Obligations Backing CMBS. The commercial real estate
loans backing the CMBS may be subject to various laws enacted in the jurisdiction or state of the
borrower for the protection of creditors. If an unpaid creditor files a lawsuit seeking payment, the
court may invalidate all or part of the borrower’s debt as a fraudulent conveyance, subordinate such
indebtedness to existing or future creditors of the borrower or recover amounts previously paid by
the borrower in satisfaction of such indebtedness, based on certain tests for borrower insolvency
and other facts and circumstances, which may vary by jurisdiction. There can be no assurance as to
what standard a court would apply in order to determine whether the borrower was “insolvent”
after giving effect to the incurrence of the indebtedness constituting the commercial mortgage
backing the CMBS, or that regardless of the method of valuation, a court would not determine that
the borrower was “insolvent” after giving effect to such incurrence. In addition, in the event of the
insolvency of a borrower, payments made on such commercial mortgage loans could be subject to
avoidance as a “preference” if made within a certain period of time (which may be as long as one
year and one day) before such insolvency.

Risks Associated with Interest Shortfalls. The Fund’s CMBS investments may be subject to interest
shortfalls due to interest collected from the underlying loans not being sufficient to pay accrued
interest to all of the CMBS. Interest shortfalls to the trust will occur when the servicer does not
advance full interest payments on defaulted loans. The servicer in a CMBS trust is required to
advance monthly principal and interest payments due on a delinquent loan. Once a loan is 60 days
delinquent, the servicer is required to obtain a new appraisal to determine the value of the property
securing the loan. The servicer is only required to advance interest based on the lesser of the loan
amount or 90% of the appraised value. Interest shortfalls occur when 90% of the appraised value is
less than the loan amount and the servicer does not advance interest on the full loan amount. The
resulting interest shortfalls impact interest payments on the most junior class in the trust first. As
interest shortfalls in-crease, more senior classes may be impacted. Over time, senior classes may be
reimbursed for accumulated shortfalls if the delinquent loans are resolved, but there is no guarantee
that shortfalls will be collected. Interest shortfalls to the trust may also occur as a result of
accumulated advances and expenses on defaulted loans. When a defaulted loan or foreclosed
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property is liquidated, the servicer will be reimbursed for accumulated advances and expenses prior
to payments to CMBS bond holders. If proceeds are insufficient to reimburse the servicer or if a
defaulted loan is modified and not foreclosed, the servicer is able to make a claim on interest
payments that is senior to the bond holders to cover accumulated advances and expenses. If the
claim is greater than interest collected on the loans, interest shortfalls could impact one or more
bond classes in a CMBS trust until the servicer’s claim is satisfied. Interest shortfalls will be more
likely during times of economic stress or other significant market events, which will result in greater
risk of loss on the Fund’s investments.

Risks Associated with Prepayment. The Fund’s CMBS investments may be subject to prepayment.
Prepayments on CMBS are affected by a number of factors. If prevailing rates for commercial real
estate loans fall below the interest rates on the commercial real estate loans underlying the Fund’s
CMBS investments, prepayments would generally be expected to increase. Conversely, if prevailing
rates for commercial real estate loans rise above the interest rates on the commercial real estate
loans underlying the Fund’s CMBS investments, prepayment rates would generally be expected to
decrease. Faster than expected prepayments may adversely affect the Fund’s profitability,
particularly if the Fund is forced to invest prepayments it receives in lower yielding securities. Certain
commercial real estate loans underlying CMBS may have lockout periods and/or defeasance periods
during which time prepayment is prohibited or prepayment penalties or substitute defeasance
collateral is required. However, certain of such CMBS permit prepayment after such lockout periods
or defeasance periods or the periods for such prepayment premiums have expired. Prepayments on
CMBS are also affected by the value of the related mortgaged property, the borrower’s equity in the
mortgaged property, the financial circumstances of the borrower, fluctuations in the business
operated by the borrower on the mortgaged property, competition, general economic conditions
and other factors. However, there can be no assurance that the underlying loans of a CMBS issue
will prepay at any particular rate.

Risks Associated with Extensions. The Fund’s CMBS investments may be subject to extension,
resulting in the term of the securities being longer than expected. Extensions on CMBS are affected
by a number of factors, including the general availability of financing in the market, the value of the
related mortgaged property, the borrower’s equity in the mortgaged property, the financial
circumstances of the borrower, fluctuations in the business operated by the borrower on the
mortgaged property, competition, general economic conditions and other factors.

Reinvestment Risk. Reinvestment risk is the risk that income from the Fund’s portfolio will decline
if the Fund invests the proceeds from matured, traded or called bonds at market interest rates that
are below the Fund’s portfolio’s current earnings rate. A decline in income could affect the Common
Shares’ market price or their overall returns.

Risks Associated with the Servicers. The exercise of remedies and successful realization of
liquidation proceeds relating to commercial real estate loans underlying CMBS may be highly
dependent on the performance of the servicer or special servicer. The servicer may not be
appropriately staffed or compensated to immediately address issues or concerns with the
underlying loans. Such servicers may exit the business and need to be replaced which could have a
negative impact on the portfolio due to lack of focus during a transition. Special servicers frequently
are affiliated with investors who have purchased the most subordinate bond classes, and certain
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servicing actions, such as a loan extension instead of forcing a borrower pay off, may benefit the
subordinate bond classes more so than the senior bond classes. While servicers are obligated to
service the portfolio subject to a servicing standard and maximize the present value of the loans for
all bond classes, servicers with an affiliate investment in the CMBS may have a conflict of interest.
There may be a limited number of special servicers available, particularly those which do not have
conflicts of interest.

Risks Associated with Structured Securities. Structured securities are securities that entitle the
holders thereof to receive payments that depend primarily on the cash flow from, or sale proceeds
of, a specified pool of assets that by their terms convert into cash within a finite time period,
together with rights or other assets designed to assure the servicing or timely distribution of
proceeds to holders of such securities. The CMBS in which the Fund will invest are structured
securities. Thus, CMBS will bear various risks typically experienced by structured securities: credit
risks, liquidity risks, interest rate risks, market risks, operational risks, structural risks and legal risks.
The CMBS are subject to the significant credit risks inherent in the underlying collateral and to the
risk that the servicer fails to perform. The performance of the CMBS is also dependent on the
allocation of principal and interest payments as well as losses among the classes of such securities
of any issue. In addition, concentrations of CMBS backed by underlying collateral located in a specific
geographic region or concentrations of specific borrowers or property types, may subject the CMBS
to additional risk. Certain CMBS may have structural features that divert payments of interest and/or
principal to more senior classes when the delinquency or loss experience of the pool exceeds certain
levels, which would reduce or eliminate payments of interest on one or more classes of such CMBS
for one or more payment dates. Additionally, as a result of cash flow being diverted to payments of
principal on more senior classes, the average life of the more junior securities may lengthen. As a
result, a shortfall in payments to subordinate investors in CMBS will generally not result in a default
being declared on the transaction and the transaction will not be restructured or unwound.

Risks Associated with the Limited Liguidity of CMBS. The CMBS investments the Fund may invest
in may have no, or only a limited, trading market. The liquidity of the CMBS will generally fluctuate
with, among other things, general economic conditions, domestic and international political events,
developments or trends in a particular industry. The credit markets, including the CMBS market,
have periodically experienced decreased liquidity on the primary and secondary markets during
periods of extreme market volatility, such as the recent global liquidity crisis. Such market conditions
could re-occur and would impact the valuations of the Fund’s investments and impair PrinREl's
ability to sell securities. Some or all of the CMBS may also be subject to restrictions on transfer and
may be considered illiquid.

Risks Associated with Interest Rate Movements. Debt securities, such as CMBS, are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. In general, bond prices rise when interest rates fall and fall when interest
rates rise. Longer-term bonds are generally more sensitive to interest rate changes. The Fund may
utilize derivative instruments for purposes of hedging interest rate risk. The use of derivatives may
involve certain costs and risks which are outlined below.

“Spread Widening” Risk. For reasons not necessarily attributable to any of the risks set forth herein
(for example, supply/demand imbalances or other market forces), the market spreads of the
securities in which the Fund invests may increase substantially causing the securities prices to fall.
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It may not be possible to predict, or to hedge against, such “spread widening” risk. In addition, mark-
to-market accounting of the Fund’s investments will have an interim effect on the reported value
prior to realization of an investment.

Risks Associated with Hedging. The Fund may, but is not obligated to, utilize financial instruments,
such as over-the- counter derivatives transactions, to hedge its investments and the interest rate
and/or spread risk associated therewith. There can be no assurance that the Fund will hedge when
appropriate or choose the correct hedge if it does hedge. The use of hedging transactions involves
certain risks. These risks include (i) the possibility that the market will move in a manner or direction
that would have resulted in gain for the Fund had a particular hedging transaction not been utilized,
in which case the Fund’s performance would have been better had the Fund not engaged in the
hedging transaction; (ii) the risk of imperfect correlation between the risk sought to be hedged and
the hedging instrument used; (iii) potential illiquidity for the hedging instrument used, which may
make it difficult or costly for the Fund to close-out or unwind a hedging transaction; and (iv)
market conditions.

Over-the-counter derivatives transactions are also subject to counterparty risk. Counterparty
risk is the risk that the party on the opposite side of a contract will be unable to fulfill the terms of
the contract when called upon, creating exposure equal to the replacement cost or loss of market
value of the contract. To minimize counterparty risk, the Fund may diversify its counterparty
exposure and may create exposure limits.

The Fund’s use of derivatives or other hedging transactions may be limited by legal and regulatory
requirements applicable to the Fund or PrinREI.

Tax Risk Relating to Investments in Certain REMICs. The Fund may acquire residual interests in
REMICs. The Fund may be taxable at the highest corporate income tax rate on a portion of the
income arising from a residual interest in a REMIC that is allocable to the percentage of the Fund’s
Common Shares held by “disqualified organizations,” which are generally certain cooperatives,
governmental entities and tax-exempt organizations that are exempt from unrelated business
taxable income. Because this tax would be imposed on the Fund, all of the Fund’s investors, including
investors that are not disqualified organizations, would bear a portion of the tax cost associated
with the Fund’s investment in a residual interest in a REMIC.

In addition, if the Fund realizes excess inclusion income and allocates it to Common Shareholders,
this income cannot be offset by net operating losses of the Common Shareholders. If the Common
Shareholder is a tax-exempt entity and not a disqualified organization, then this income would be
fully taxable as unrelated business taxable income under Section 512 of the Code. If the Common
Shareholder is a foreign person, it would be subject to U.S. federal income tax withholding on this
income without reduction or exemption pursuant to any otherwise applicable income tax treaty.

Risks Associated with Tax Code or Accounting Changes. CMBS are generally structured as REMICs
under the Code, which impacts the tax treatment of the CMBS. Changes to REMIC legislation could
impact the investment performance of the CMBS and, as a result, the Fund. In addition, changes in
accounting standards, such as mark-to-market or consolidation rules, could negatively impact the
performance of the Fund.
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Below Investment Grade Securities Risk. The Fund may invest in CMBS and other securities rated
below investment grade or, if unrated, determined by PrinREI to be of comparable credit quality,
which are commonly referred to as “high-yield” or “junk” bonds. Investment in junk bonds involves
substantial risk of loss. Junk bonds are predominantly speculative with respect to the issuer’s
capacity to pay interest and repay principal when due and therefore involve a greater risk of default
or decline in market value due to adverse economic and issuer-specific developments. Junk bonds
display increased price sensitivity to changing interest rates and to a deteriorating economic
environment. The market values for junk bonds tend to be more volatile and such securities tend to
be less liquid than investment grade debt securities.

Real Estate-Related Securities Risk. The Fund’s investments will be subject to the risks inherent in
the ownership and operation of real estate and real estate-related businesses and assets. These risks
include, but are not limited to:

e  the burdens of ownership of real property;

e  general and local economic conditions (such as an oversupply of space or a reduction in
demand for space);

e the supply and demand for properties (including competition based on rental rates);
. energy and supply shortages;
e fluctuations in average occupancy and room rates;

e the attractiveness, type and location of the properties and changes in the relative
popularity of commercial properties as an investment;

e the financial condition and resources of tenants, buyers and sellers of properties;
. increased mortgage defaults;
. the quality of maintenance, insurance and management services;

. changes in the availability of debt financing which may render the sale or refinancing of
properties difficult or impracticable;

. changes in building, environmental and other laws and/or regulations (including those
governing usage and improvements), fiscal policies and zoning laws;

. changes in real property tax rates;

. changes in interest rates and the availability of mortgage funds which may render the sale
or refinancing of properties difficult or impracticable;

e changes in operating costs and expenses;

. energy and supply shortages;

. uninsured losses or delays from casualties or condemnation;

. negative developments in the economy that depress travel or leasing activity;
. environmental liabilities;

. contingent liabilities on disposition of assets;

. uninsured or uninsurable casualties;

. acts of God, including earthquakes, hurricanes and other natural disasters;
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e social unrest and civil disturbances, epidemics, pandemics or other public crises; -
terrorist attacks and war;

. risks and operating problems arising out of the presence of certain construction materials,
structural or property level latent defects, work stoppages, shortages of labor, strikes,
union relations and contracts, fluctuating prices and supply of labor and/or other labor-
related factor; and

. other factors which are beyond the control of the Adviser and its affiliates.

In addition, the Fund’s investments will be subject to various risks which could cause fluctuations in
occupancy, rental rates, operating income and expenses or which could render the sale or financing
of its properties difficult or unattractive. For example, following the termination or expiration of a
tenant’s lease, there may be a period of time before the Fund will begin receiving rental payments
under a replacement lease. During that period, the Fund will continue to bear fixed expenses such
as interest, real estate taxes, maintenance and other operating expenses. In addition, declining
economic conditions may impair the Fund’s ability to attract replacement tenants and achieve rental
rates equal to or greater than the rents paid under previous leases. Increased competition for
tenants may require the Fund to make capital improvements to properties which would not have
otherwise been planned. Ultimately, to the extent that the Fund is unable to renew leases or re-let
space as leases expire, decreased cash flow from tenants will result, which could adversely impact
the Fund’s operating results.

REIT-Related Risk. The Fund may invest in equity and mortgage REITs. Equity REITs invest in real
estate, and mortgage REITs invest in loans secured by real estate. Investing in REITs involves certain
unique risks in addition to those risks associated with investing in the real estate industry in general.
Equity REITs may be affected by changes in the value of the underlying property owned by the REITs,
while mortgage REITs may be affected by the quality of any credit extended. REITs are dependent
upon management skills, are not diversified, and are subject to heavy cash flow dependency, default
by borrowers and self-liquidation. REITs also are subject to the possibilities of failing to qualify for
tax free pass-through of income under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”),
and failing to maintain their exemption from registration under the 1940 Act. Investment in REITs
involves risks similar to those associated with investing in small capitalization companies, and REITs
(especially mortgage REITs) are subject to interest rate risks. When interest rates decline, the value
of a REIT’s investment in fixed rate obligations can be expected to rise. Conversely, when interest
rates rise, the value of a REIT’s investment in fixed rate obligations can be expected to decline. By
investing in REITs, the Fund will indirectly bear its proportionate share of the expenses of the REITs.

Risks Associated with Direct Ownership of Real Estate Loans.

Commercial Mortgage Loans. The Fund may invest in commercial mortgage loans. The value of the
Fund’s commercial mortgage loans will be influenced by the historical rate of delinquencies and
defaults experienced on the commercial mortgage loans and by the severity of loss incurred as a
result of such defaults. The factors influencing delinquencies, defaults, and loss severity include: (i)
economic and real estate market conditions by industry sectors (e.g., multifamily, retail, office, and
hospitality); (ii) the terms and structure of the mortgage loans; and (iii) any specific limits to legal
and financial recourse upon a default under the terms of the mortgage loan.
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Commercial mortgage loans are generally viewed as exposing a lender to a greater risk of loss
through delinquency and foreclosure than lending on the security of single-family residences. The
ability of a borrower to repay a loan secured by income-producing property typically is dependent
primarily upon the successful operation and operating income of such property (i.e., the ability of
tenants to make lease payments, the ability of a property to attract and retain tenants, and the
ability of the owner to maintain the property, minimize operating expenses, and com-ply with
applicable zoning and other laws) rather than upon the existence of independent income or assets
of the borrower. Most commercial mortgage loans provide recourse only to specific assets, such as
the property, and not against the borrower’s other assets or personal guarantees.

Commercial mortgage loans generally do not fully amortize, which can necessitate a sale of the
property or refinancing of the remaining “balloon” amount at or prior to maturity of the mortgage
loan. Accordingly, investors in commercial mortgage loans bear the risk that the borrower will be
unable to refinance or otherwise repay the mortgage at maturity, thereby increasing the likelihood
of a default on the borrower’s obligation. Exercise of foreclosure and other remedies may involve
lengthy delays and additional legal and other related expenses on top of potentially declining
property values. In certain circumstances, the creditors may also become liable upon taking title to
an asset for environmental or structural damage existing at the property.

Subordination of Investments. Some of the Fund’s investments may be in b-notes and other
subordinated loans, structurally subordinated mezzanine loans and preferred equity interests of a
direct or indirect property owning entity. These investments will be subordinated to the senior
obligations of the property or issuer, either contractually or inherently due to the nature of equity
investments. Greater credit risks are usually attached to these sub-ordinated investments than to a
borrower’s first mortgage or other senior obligations. In addition, these investments may not be
protected by financial or other covenants and may have limited liquidity. Adverse changes in the
borrower’s financial condition and/or in general economic conditions may impair the ability of the
borrower to make payments on the subordinated investments and cause it to default more quickly
with respect to such investments than with respect to the borrower’s senior obligations. In many
cases, the Fund’s management of its investments and its remedies with respect thereto, including
the ability to foreclose on any collateral securing such investments, will be subject to the rights of
any senior creditors and, to the extent applicable, contractual inter-creditor and/or participation
agreement provisions.

Mezzanine Loans. Although not secured by the underlying real estate, mezzanine loans are also
subject to risk of subordination and share certain characteristics of subordinate loan interests
described above. As with commercial mortgage loans, repayment of a mezzanine loan is dependent
on the successful operation of the underlying commercial properties and, therefore, is subject to
similar considerations and risks, including certain of the considerations and risks described herein.
Mezzanine loans may also be affected by the successful operation of other properties, the interests
in which are not pledged to secure the mezzanine loan. Mezzanine loans are not secured by interests
in the underlying commercial properties. In addition, a mezzanine lender typically has additional
rights vis-a-vis the more senior lenders, including the right to cure defaults under the mortgage loan
and any senior mezzanine loan and purchase the mortgage loan and any senior mezzanine loan, in
each case under certain circumstances following a default on the mortgage loan.

64 www.principalcef.com



Summary of Updated Information
Principal Real Estate Income Fund Regarding the Fund

October 31, 2023 (Unaudited)

B-Notes and A/B Structures. The Fund may invest in b-notes, which investments are subordinate
to the a-note portion of the same loan (which the Fund would not expect to hold). In addition to the
risks described above in Subordination of Investments, certain additional risks apply to b-note
investments, including those described herein. The b-note portion of a loan is typically small relative
to the overall loan, and vis-a-vis the a-note portion of the loan is in the first loss position. As a means
to protect against the holder of the a-note from taking certain actions or receiving certain benefits
to the detriment of the holder of the b-note, the holder of the b-note often (but not always) has the
right to purchase the a-note from its holder. If available, this right may not be meaningful to the
Fund. For example, the Fund may not have the capital available to protect its b-note interest or
purchasing the a-note may alter the Fund’s overall portfolio and risk/return profile to the detriment
of Common Shareholders. In addition, a b-note may be in the form of a “rake bond.” A “rake bond”
is a CMBS backed solely by a single promissory note secured by a mortgaged property, which
promissory note is subordinate in right of payment to one or more separate promissory notes
secured by the same mortgaged property.

Bridge Financings. The Fund may invest in bridge loans as part of its investment strategy. The Fund
will bear the risk of any changes in financing markets, which may adversely affect the ability of a
borrower to refinance any bridge financings. If the borrower were unable to complete a refinancing,
then the Fund could be left holding an unexpected long-term investment in a junior security or that
junior security might be converted to equity. The Fund may make an investment with the intent of
financing or otherwise reducing the Fund’s investment shortly after the closing of such investment.
There can be no assurance that other transactions designed to reduce or leverage the Fund’s
investment will occur, or that terms of such financings will be attractive when closed. If the Fund is
unable to complete such an anticipated transaction, its investments will be less diversified than
intended. In addition, bridge financings may be secured by properties that are in transition or under
“lease up.” There is a risk that completion of such transition or “lease up” of such properties will not
occur. In that event, the Fund may be required to take possession of the property.

Concentration Risk. The Fund will be concentrating in companies in the real estate industry, which
may include CMBS, REITs, REIT-like structures, and other securities that are secured by, or otherwise
have exposure to, real estate. The focus of the Fund’s portfolio on this sector may present more
risks than if the Fund’s portfolio were broadly spread over numerous sectors of the economy. A
downturn in this sector (or any sub-sectors within it) would have a larger impact on the Fund than
on an investment company that does not concentrate solely in this specific sector (or in specific sub-
sectors). At times, the performance of companies in the real estate industry (or a specific sub-sector)
may lag the performance of other sectors or the broader market as a whole. Any market price
movements, regulatory changes, or economic conditions affecting CMBS, REITs, REIT-like structures,
and real estate more generally, will have a significant impact on the Fund’s performance.

Credit Risk. The Fund could lose money if the borrower, issuer or guarantor of a loan underlying a
CMBS, or the counterparty to a derivatives contract, repurchase agreement or a loan of portfolio
securities, is unable or unwilling to make timely principal and/or interest payments, or to otherwise
honor its obligations. Securities are subject to varying degrees of credit risk, which are often
reflected in credit ratings. These risks are heightened with respect to issuers of high- yield or “junk”
bonds.
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Pricing Risk. Daily valuations of most of the Fund’s securities are provided by a third-party pricing
service. There can be no assurance that PrinREI will be able to sell the securities at the same price
as the valuations. If market conditions make it difficult to value some investments, the Fund may
value these investments using more subjective methods, such as fair value pricing. In such cases,
the value determined for an investment could be different than the value realized upon such
investment’s sale. Non-public or non-securities investments will be valued on a fair-value pricing
basis. In addition, the valuation of real estate generally, and of the collateral underlying the loans in
which the Fund invests in, is inherently subjective due to, among other things, the individual nature
of each property, its location, the expected future cash flows from that particular property and the
valuation methodology adopted. There can be no assurance that any such valuations obtained will
accurately reflect the value of such underlying collateral.

Secondary markets may be subject to irregular trading activity, wide bid/ask spreads and extended
trade settlement periods, which may prevent the Fund from being able to realize full value and thus
sell a security for its full valuation. This could cause a material decline in the Fund’s net asset value.

Excise Tax Risk. A regulated investment company that fails to distribute, by the close of each
calendar year, an amount at least equal to the sum of 98% of its ordinary income for such calendar
year and 98.2% of its capital gain net income for the one-year period ending on October 31 of such
calendar year, plus any shortfalls from any prior year’s required distribution, is liable for a 4% excise
tax on the portion of the undistributed amounts of such income that are less than the
required distributions.

Asset-Backed Securities Risks. Because asset-backed securities may not have the benefit of a
security interest in the underlying assets, asset-backed securities present certain additional risks
that are not present with mortgage-backed securities. For example, credit card receivables are
generally unsecured, and the debtors are entitled to the protection of a number of state and federal
consumer credit laws, many of which give such debtors the right to avoid payment of certain
amounts owed on the credit cards, thereby reducing the balance due. Furthermore, most issuers of
automobile receivables permit the servicer to retain possession of the underlying obligations. If the
servicer were to sell these obligations to another party, there is a risk that the purchaser would
acquire an interest superior to that of the holders of the related automobile receivables. In addition,
because of the large number of vehicles involved in a typical issuance and technical requirements
under state laws, the trustee for the holders of the automobile receivables may not have a proper
security interest in all of the obligations backing such receivables. Therefore, there is the possibility
that recoveries on repossessed collateral may not, in some cases, be avail-able to support payments
on these securities.

Payments of principal and interest on asset-backed securities may be dependent upon the cash flow
generated by the underlying assets backing the securities and, in certain cases, may be supported
by some form of credit enhancement. The degree of credit enhancement provided for each issue is
generally based on historical information respecting the level of credit risk associated with the
underlying assets. Delinquency or loss in excess of that anticipated or failure of the credit
enhancement could adversely affect the return on an investment in such a security. The value of the
securities also may change because of changes in interest rates or changes in the market’s
perception of the creditworthiness of the servicing agent for the loan pool, the originator of the
loans or the financial institution providing the credit enhancement. Additionally, since the
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deterioration of worldwide economic and liquidity conditions that became acute in 2008, asset-
backed securities have been subject to greater liquidity risk. Asset-backed securities are ultimately
dependent upon payment of loans and receivables by individuals, businesses and other borrowers,
and the Fund generally has no recourse against the entity that originated the loans.

The yield characteristics of the asset-backed securities in which the Fund may invest differ from
those of traditional debt securities. Among the major differences are that interest and principal
payments are made more frequently on asset-backed securities (usually monthly) and that principal
may be prepaid at any time because the underlying assets generally may be prepaid at any time. As
a result, if the Fund purchases these securities at a premium, a prepayment rate that is faster than
expected will reduce their yield, while a prepayment rate that is slower than expected will have the
opposite effect of increasing yield. Conversely, if the Fund purchases these securities at a discount,
faster than expected prepayments will increase, while slower than expected prepayments will
reduce, the yield on these securities. Because prepayment of principal generally occurs during a
period of declining interest rates, the Fund may generally have to reinvest the proceeds of such
prepayments at lower interest rates. Therefore, asset-backed securities may have less potential for
capital appreciation in periods of falling interest rates than other income-bearing securities of
comparable maturity.

The availability of asset-backed securities may be affected by legislative or regulatory developments.
It is possible that such developments may require the Fund to dispose of any then-existing holdings
of such securities.

Repurchase Agreement Risk. While repurchase agreements involve certain risks not associated
with direct in-vestments in debt securities, the value of the collateral underlying the repurchase
agreement will be at least equal to the repurchase price, including any accrued interest earned on
the repurchase agreement. In the event of a default or bankruptcy by a selling financial institution,
the Fund will seek to liquidate such collateral. However, the exercising of the Fund’s right to liquidate
such collateral could involve certain costs or delays and, to the extent that proceeds from any sale
upon a default of the obligation to repurchase were less than the repurchase price, the Fund could
suffer a loss.

Risks Related to the Fund'’s Use of Leverage. Since the holders of Common Shares pay all expenses
related to the issuance of debt or use of leverage, the use of leverage through borrowing of money,
issuance of debt securities or the issuance of preferred stock for investment purposes creates risks
for the holders of Common Shares. Leverage is a speculative technique that exposes the Fund to
greater risk and increased costs than if it were not implemented. Increases and decreases in the
value of the Fund'’s portfolio will be magnified when the Fund uses leverage. As a result, leverage
may cause greater changes in the Fund’s NAV. The Fund will also have to pay interest on its
borrowings or dividends on preferred stock, if any, which may reduce the Fund’s return. The
leverage costs may be greater than the Fund’s return on the underlying investment. The Fund’s
leveraging strategy may not be successful.

If the Fund utilizes leverage in the form of borrowing, the money borrowed for investment purposes
will incur interest based on shorter-term interest rates that would be periodically reset. So long as
the Fund’s portfolio provides a higher rate of return, net of expenses, than the interest rate on
borrowed money, as reset periodically, the leverage may cause the holders of Common Shares to
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receive a higher current rate of return than if the Fund were not leveraged. If, however, long- term
and/or short-term rates rise, the interest rate on borrowed money could exceed the rate of return
on securities held by the Fund, reducing return to the holders of Common Shares.

There is no assurance that a leveraging strategy will be successful or that it will be used. Leverage
involves risks and special considerations for Common Stockholders, including:

. the likelihood of greater volatility of NAV, market price and dividend rate of the Common
Shares than a comparable portfolio without leverage;

. the risk that fluctuations in interest rates on borrowings or on short-term debt or in the
interest or dividend rates on any debt securities or preferred shares that the Fund must
pay will reduce the return to the Common Stockholders;

. the effect of leverage in a declining market, which is likely to cause a greater decline in
the NAV of the Common Shares than if the Fund were not leveraged, may result in a
greater decline in the market price of the Common Shares;

¢ when the Fund uses financial leverage, the investment management fees payable to the
Adviser and the subadvisory fees payable by the Adviser to the Subadviser will be higher
than if the Fund did not use leverage. This may create a conflict of interest between the
Adviser and the Subadviser, on the one hand, and the holders of Common Shares, on the
other; and

. leverage may increase operating costs, which may reduce total return.

The use of leverage will require the Fund to segregate assets to cover its obligations (or, if the Fund
borrows money or issues preferred shares, to maintain asset coverage in conformity with the
requirements of the 1940 Act). While the segregated assets will be invested in liquid securities, they
may not be used for other operational purposes. Consequently, the use of leverage may limit the
Fund’s flexibility and may require that the Fund sell other portfolio investments to pay Fund
expenses, to maintain assets in an amount sufficient to cover the Fund’s leveraged exposure or to
meet other obligations at a time when it may be disadvantageous to sell such assets. Certain types
of borrowings by the Fund may result in the Fund being subject to covenants in credit agreements
relating to asset coverage and portfolio composition requirements. The Fund may be subject to
certain restrictions on investments imposed by guidelines of one or more rating agencies, which
may issue ratings for the short-term debt securities or preferred shares issued by the Fund. These
guidelines may impose asset coverage or portfolio composition requirements that are more
stringent than those imposed by the 1940 Act. The Subadviser does not believe that these covenants
or guidelines will impede it from managing the Fund’s portfolio in accordance with the Fund’s
investment objective and policies if the Fund were to utilize leverage.

Risks Associated with Swap Transactions. The Fund may enter into interest rate, index, total return
and currency swap agreements. Swap agreements are two-party contracts under which the fund
and a counterparty, such as a broker or dealer, agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in
rates of return) earned or realized on an agreed-upon underlying asset or investment over the term
of the swap. The use of swap transactions is a highly specialized activity which involves strategies
and risks different from those associated with ordinary portfolio security transactions. If the
Subadviser is incorrect in its forecasts of default risks, market spreads, liquidity or other applicable
factors or events, the investment performance of the Fund would diminish compared with what it
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would have been if these techniques were not used. Swaps and swap options can be used for a
variety of purposes, including: to manage fund exposure to changes in interest or foreign currency
exchange rates and credit quality; as an efficient means of adjusting fund overall exposure to certain
markets; in an effort to enhance income or total return or protect the value of portfolio securities;
to serve as a cash management tool; and to adjust portfolio duration.

There are risks in the use of swaps. Swaps could result in losses if interest or foreign currency
exchange rates or credit quality changes are not correctly anticipated. Total return swaps could
result in losses if the reference index, security, or investments do not perform as anticipated. Total
return swaps involve an enhanced risk that the issuer or counterparty will fail to perform its
contractual obligations. Total return swaps may effectively add leverage to the Fund’s portfolio
because the Fund would be subject to investment exposure on the full notional amount of the swap.
To the extent the Fund enters into a total return swap on equity securities, the Fund will receive the
positive performance of a notional amount of such securities underlying the total return swap. In
exchange, the Fund will be obligated to pay the negative performance of such notional amount of
securities. Therefore, the Fund assumes the risk of a substantial decrease in the market value of the
equity securities. The use of swaps may not always be successful; using them could lower fund total
return, their prices can be highly volatile, and the potential loss from the use of swaps can exceed
the fund’s initial investment in such instruments. Also, the other party to a swap agreement could
default on its obligations or refuse to cash out the fund’s investment at a reasonable price, which
could turn an expected gain into a loss.

Currently, certain categories of interest rate swaps are subject to mandatory clearing, and more are
expected to be cleared in the future. The counterparty risk for cleared derivatives is generally
expected to be lower than for uncleared over-the- counter derivative transactions as each party to
a transaction looks only to the central clearing house for performance of obligations under the
transaction. However, there can be no assurance that a clearing house, or its members, will satisfy
the clearing house’s obligations to the fund or that the fund’s use of swaps will be advantageous.

Preferred Stock Risk. The Fund may have exposure to preferred stocks. In addition to credit risk,
investments in preferred stocks involve certain other risks. Certain preferred stocks contain
provisions that allow an issuer under certain conditions to skip distributions (in the case of “non-
cumulative” preferred stocks) or defer distributions (in the case of “cumulative” preferred stocks).
If the Fund owns a preferred stock that is deferring its distributions, the Fund may be required to
report income for tax purposes while it is not receiving income on this position. Preferred stocks
often contain provisions that allow for redemption in the event of certain tax or legal changes or at
the issuers’ call. In the event of redemption, the Fund may not be able to reinvest the proceeds at
comparable rates of return. Preferred stocks typically do not provide any voting rights, except in
cases when dividends are in arrears beyond a certain time period, which varies by issue. Preferred
stocks are subordinated to bonds and other debt instruments in a company’s capital structure in
terms of priority to corporate income and liquidation payments, and therefore will be subject to
greater credit risk than those debt instruments. Preferred stocks may be significantly less liquid than
many other securities, such as U.S. government securities, corporate debt or common stock.

Foreign Securities Risk. Investments in securities of non-U.S. issuers will be subject to risks not
usually associated with owning securities of U.S. issuers. These risks can include fluctuations in
foreign currencies, foreign currency exchange controls, social, political and economic instability,
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differences in securities regulation and trading, expropriation or nationalization of assets, and
foreign taxation issues. In addition, changes in government administrations or economic or
monetary policies in the United States or abroad could result in appreciation or depreciation of the
Fund’s securities. It may also be more difficult to obtain and enforce a judgment against a non-U.S.
issuer. Foreign investments made by the Fund must be made in compliance with U.S. and foreign
currency restrictions and tax laws restricting the amounts and types of foreign investments. The
risks of foreign investing may be magnified for investments in issuers located in emerging
market countries.

To the extent the Fund invests in depositary receipts, the Fund will be subject to many of the same
risks as when investing directly in non-U.S. securities. The holder of an unsponsored depositary
receipt may have limited voting rights and may not receive as much information about the issuer of
the underlying securities as would the holder of a sponsored depositary receipt.

Emerging Markets Risk. The Fund may invest in securities of issuers located in emerging markets.
Emerging markets issuers are those (i) whose securities are traded principally on a stock exchange
or over-the-counter in an emerging market country, (ii) that are organized under the laws of and
have a principal office(s) in an emerging market country or (iii) that have at least 50% of their
revenues, profits or assets in emerging market countries. Emerging market countries include any
country not included in the MSCI World Index, a free float-adjusted market capitalization weighted
index that is designed to measure the equity market performance of developed markets. Risks of
investing in emerging markets issuers include: smaller market capitalization of securities markets,
which may suffer periods of relative illiquidity; significant price volatility; restrictions on foreign
investment; and possible restrictions on repatriation of investment income and capital. In addition,
foreign investors may be required to register the proceeds of sales; future economic or political
crises could lead to price controls, forced mergers, expropriation or confiscatory taxation, seizure,
nationalization, or creation of government monopolies. The currencies of emerging market
countries may experience significant declines against the U.S. dollar, and devaluation may occur
subsequent to investments in these currencies by the Fund. Inflation and rapid fluctuations in
inflation rates have had, and may continue to have, negative effects on the economies and securities
markets of certain emerging market countries. Certain emerging markets also may face other
significant internal or external risks, including a heightened risk of war, and ethnic, religious and
racial conflicts. In addition, governments in many emerging market countries participate to a
significant degree in their economies and securities markets, which may impair investment and
economic growth, and which may in turn diminish the value of the companies in those markets.

Foreign Currency Risk. Investments in securities that trade in and receive revenues in foreign
currencies are subject to the risk that those currencies will decline in value relative to the U.S. dollar.
Currency rates in foreign countries may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. A decline
in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar will reduce the value of securities held
by the Fund and denominated in those currencies. Some foreign governments levy withholding taxes
against dividend and interest income. Although in some countries portions of these taxes are
recoverable, any amounts not recovered will reduce the income received by the Fund, and may
reduce distributions to common shareholders. These risks are generally heightened for investments
in emerging market countries.
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Small and Mid-Capitalization Stock Risk. The Fund may invest in companies of any market
capitalization. The Fund considers small companies to be those with a market capitalization up to
$2 billion and medium-sized companies to be those with a market capitalization between $2 billion
and $10 billion. Smaller and medium-sized company stocks may be more volatile than, and perform
differently from, larger company stocks. There may be less trading in the stock of a smaller or
medium-sized company, which means that buy and sell transactions in that stock could have a larger
impact on the stock’s price than is the case with larger company stocks. Smaller and medium-sized
companies may have fewer business lines; changes in any one line of business, therefore, may have
a greater impact on a smaller or medium-sized company’s stock price than is the case for a larger
company. As a result, the purchase or sale of more than a limited number of shares of a small or
medium-sized company may affect its market price. The Fund may need a considerable amount of
time to purchase or sell its positions in these securities. In addition, smaller or medium-sized
company stocks may not be well known to the investing public and may be held primarily by insiders
or institutional investors.

Convertible Securities Risk. The market value of convertible securities tends to fall when prevailing
interest rates rise. The value of convertible securities also tends to change whenever the market
value of the underlying common or preferred stock fluctuates. Convertible securities tend to be of
lower credit quality.

Risks Associated with Futures Contracts. If futures are used for hedging purposes, there can be no
guarantee that there will be a correlation between price movements in the futures contract and in
the underlying financial instruments that are being hedged. This could result from differences
between the financial instruments being hedged and the financial instruments underlying the
standard contracts available for trading. In addition, price movements of futures contracts may not
correlate perfectly with price movements of the financial instruments underlying the futures
contracts due to certain market distortions. Successful use of futures by the Fund also is subject to
PrinREI’s ability to predict correctly movements in the direction of the relevant market. For example,
if the Fund uses futures to hedge against the possibility of a decline in the value of a currency in
which certain portfolio securities are denominated, and the value of that currency increases instead,
the Fund will lose part or all of the benefit of the increased value of the securities denominated in
the currency which it has hedged because it will have offsetting losses in its futures positions.
Furthermore, if in such circumstances the Fund has insufficient cash, it may have to sell securities to
meet daily variation margin requirements. The Fund may have to sell such securities at a time when
it may be disadvantageous to do so.

Risks Associated with Forward Currency Contracts. PrinREl’s decision whether to enter into
forward foreign currency contracts will depend in part on its view regarding liquidity, market
conditions, and the direction and amount in which exchange rates are likely to move. The forecasting
of movements in exchange rates is extremely difficult, so that it is highly uncertain whether a
currency management strategy, if undertaken, would be success-ful. To the extent that PrinREl’s
view regarding future exchange rates proves to have been incorrect, the Fund may realize losses on
its foreign currency transactions. Even if a foreign currency hedge is effective in protecting the Fund
from losses resulting from unfavorable changes in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and
foreign currencies, it also would limit the gains which might be realized by the Fund from favorable
changes in exchange rates.
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The Fund may also utilize forward rate contracts. Under forward rate contracts, the buyer locks in
an interest rate at a future settlement date. If the interest rate on the settlement date exceeds the
lock rate, the buyer pays the seller the difference between the two rates. If the lock rate exceeds
the interest rate on the settlement date, the seller pays the buyer the difference between the two
rates. If the other party to a forward rate contract defaults, the Fund’s risk of loss consists of the net
amount of payments that the Fund is contractually entitled to receive that is in excess of collateral
posted by the Fund’s counterparty (whether a clearing corporation in the case of exchange-traded
instruments or another third party in the case of over-the-counter instruments) in respect of such
liability. If there is a default by the other party to such a transaction, the Fund will have contractual
remedies pursuant to the agreements related to the transaction. These instruments are traded in
the over-the-counter market.

Certain currency derivatives are subject to regulation under the Dodd-Frank Act. Potential rule-
making with respect to such derivatives could affect the cost of such derivatives or otherwise restrict
the fund’s ability to effectively use currency derivatives.

Risks Associated with Covered Calls. The Fund may write covered call options, subject to the
limitation that no more than 50% of the Fund’s assets attributable to equity securities will be subject
to covered call options at any given time. As the writer of a covered call option, during the option’s
life the Fund gives up the opportunity to profit from increases in the market value of the security
covering the call option above the sum of the premium and the strike price of the call, but the Fund
retains the risk of loss should the price of the underlying security decline. The writer of an option
has no control over the time when it may be required to fulfill its obligation as a writer of the option.
Once an option writer has received an exercise notice, it cannot effect a closing purchase transaction
to terminate its obligation under the option and must deliver the underlying security at the exercise
price. There can be no assurance that a liquid market will exist when the Fund seeks to close out an
option prior to exercise. If trading were suspended in an option, the Fund would not be able to close
out the option position. If the Fund were unable to close out a covered call option that it had written
on a security, the Fund would not be able to sell the underlying security unless the option expired
without exercise.

Portfolio Turnover Risk. The techniques and strategies contemplated by the Fund may result in a
high degree of portfolio turnover. The Fund cannot accurately predict its securities portfolio
turnover rate, but anticipates that its annual portfolio turnover rate will not exceed 100% under
normal market conditions, although it could be materially higher under certain conditions. Higher
portfolio turnover rates could result in corresponding increases in brokerage commissions and
generate short-term capital gains taxable as ordinary income.

Market Price of Common Shares. The shares of closed-end management investment companies
often trade at a discount from their NAV, and the Fund’s common shares may likewise trade at a
discount from NAV. The trading price of the Fund’s common shares may be less than the public
offering price. The returns earned by common shareholders who sell their common shares below
NAV will be reduced.
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Risks from Non-Diversified Status. As a non-diversified investment company under the 1940 Act,
and the rules and regulations thereunder, the Fund may invest a greater portion of its assets in a
more limited number of issuers than a diversified fund. The Fund will participate in a limited number
of investments and all or a substantial majority of its investment portfolio may be in a particular
bond class. As a result, the Fund’s investment portfolio could have significant investments in a
particular issuer or bond class. An investment in the Fund may, under certain circumstances, present
greater risk to an investor than an investment in a diversified company because changes in the
financial condition or market assessment of a single issuer may cause greater fluctuations in the
value of the Common Shares. While the investment limitations of the Fund restrict investments in
any specific CMBS bond to a maximum of 10% of the Fund’s total assets, losses incurred on an
investment of this size could still have a significant impact on overall Fund performance. The Fund
intends to comply with the diversification requirements of the Code applicable to regulated
investment companies.

Management Risk. The Fund is subject to management risk because it is an actively managed
portfolio. ALPS, PrinREIl and the individual portfolio managers will apply investment techniques and
risk analyses in making investment decisions for the Fund, but there can be no guarantee that these
will produce the desired results.

Capital Market Risk. Global financial markets and economic conditions are volatile due to a variety
of factors, including significant write-offs in the financial services sector, and therefore companies
may have difficulty raising capital. In particular, as a result of concerns about the general stability of
financial markets and specifically the solvency of lending counterparties, the cost of raising capital
from the credit markets generally has increased as many lenders and institutional investors have
increased interest rates, enacted tighter lending standards, re-fused to refinance debt on existing
terms or at all and reduced, or in some cases ceased to provide, funding to borrowers. In addition,
lending counterparties under existing revolving credit facilities and other debt instruments may be
unwilling or unable to meet their funding obligations. Due to these factors, companies may be un-
able to obtain new debt or equity financing on acceptable terms or at all. If funding is not available
when needed, or is available only on unfavorable terms, companies may not be able to meet their
obligations as they come due.

Anti-Takeover Provisions. The Fund’s declaration of trust includes provisions that could have the
effect of limiting the ability of other entities or persons to acquire control of the Fund or to change
the composition of the Board of Trustees. In certain circumstances, these provisions might also
inhibit the ability of shareholders to sell their shares at a premium over prevailing market prices.

Derivatives Risks. The Fund may enter into derivatives. Generally, a derivative is a financial contract
the value of which depends upon, or is derived from, the value of an underlying asset, reference
rate, or index, and may relate to individual debt or equity instruments, interest rates, currencies or
currency exchange rates, commodities, related indexes, and other assets. Derivatives can be volatile
and involve various types and degrees of risk, depending upon the characteristics of a particular
derivative. Derivatives may entail investment exposures that are greater than their cost would
suggest, meaning that a small investment in a derivative could have a large potential impact on the
performance of a fund. The fund could experience a loss if derivatives do not perform as anticipated,
if they are not correlated with the performance of other investments which they are used to hedge
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or if the fund is unable to liquidate a position because of an illiquid secondary market. The market
for many derivatives is, or can suddenly become, illiquid. Changes in liquidity may result in
significant, rapid and unpredictable changes in the prices of derivatives. When used for speculative
purposes, derivatives will produce enhanced investment exposure, which will magnify gains and
losses. Certain derivatives transactions may give rise to a form of leverage. The use of derivatives
may cause the Fund to liquidate portfolio positions when it may not be advantageous to do so to
satisfy its obligations and may cause the Fund to be more volatile than if it had not been leveraged.
This is because leverage tends to exaggerate the effect of any increase or decrease in the value of
the Fund’s portfolio securities. Further, using derivatives may include the risk of mispricing or
improper valuation of derivatives and the inability of derivatives to correlate perfectly, or at all, with
the value of the assets, reference rates or indexes they are designed to closely track. The Fund also
will be subject to credit risk with respect to the counterparties to the derivatives contracts
purchased by the Fund. If a counterparty becomes bankrupt or otherwise fails to perform its
obligations under a derivative contract due to financial difficulties, the Fund may experience
significant delays in obtaining any recovery under the derivative contract in a bankruptcy or other
reorganization proceeding. The Fund may obtain only a limited recovery or may obtain no recovery
in such circumstances.

Regulatory developments affecting the exchange-traded and OTC derivatives markets may impair a
Fund’s ability to manage or hedge its investment portfolio through the use of derivatives. In
particular, Rule 18f-4 under the 1940 Act requires funds to trade derivatives and other transactions
that create future payment or delivery obligations (except reverse repurchase agreements and
similar financing transactions) subject to a value-at-risk (“VaR”) leverage limit, certain derivatives
risk management program and reporting requirements. Generally, these requirements apply unless
a fund qualifies as a “limited derivatives user,” as defined in the rule. Under the rule, when a fund
trades reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions, including certain tender
option bonds, it needs to aggregate the amount of indebtedness associated with the reverse
repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions with the aggregate amount of any other
senior securities representing indebtedness when calculating the fund’s asset coverage ratio or treat
all such transactions as derivatives transactions. Reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing
transactions aggregated with other indebtedness do not need to be included in the calculation of
whether a fund is a limited derivatives user, but for funds subject to the VaR testing, reverse
repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions must be included for purposes of such
testing whether treated as derivatives transactions or not. The SEC also provided guidance in
connection with the rule regarding use of securities lending collateral that may limit the ability of
the Fund to use derivatives and reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions
as part of its investment strategies. These requirements may increase the cost of the Fund’s
investments and cost of doing business, which could adversely affect investors. The Dodd- Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) and the rules promulgated
thereunder may limit the ability of the Fund to enter into one or more exchange-traded or OTC
derivatives transactions.

Market Disruption and Geopolitical Risk. The value of your investment in the Fund is based on the
values of the Fund’s investments, which may change due to economic and other events that affect
markets generally, as well as those that affect particular regions, countries, industries, companies
or governments. These movements, sometimes called volatility, may be greater or less depending
on the types of securities the Fund owns and the markets in which the securities trade. Securities in
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the Fund'’s portfolio may underperform due to inflation (or expectations for inflation), interest rates,
global demand for particular products or resources, natural disasters, pandemics, epidemics,
terrorism, regulatory events and governmental or quasi-governmental actions. The occurrence of
global events similar to those in recent years, such as the war in Ukraine, terrorist attacks around
the world, natural disasters, social and political discord or debt crises and downgrades, among
others, may result in market volatility and may have long term effects on both the U.S. and global
financial markets. The occurrence of such events may be sudden and unexpected, and it is difficult
to predict when similar events affecting the U.S. or global financial markets may occur, the effects
that such events may have and the duration of those effects. Any such event(s) could have a
significant adverse impact on the value, liquidity and risk profile of the Fund’s portfolio, as well as
its ability to sell securities to meet redemptions. There is a risk that you may lose money by investing
in the Fund.

Social, political, economic and other conditions and events, such as natural disasters, health
emergencies (e.g., epidemics and pandemics), tariffs and trade disruptions, recession, changes in
currency rates, terrorism, conflicts and social unrest, may occur and could significantly impact
issuers, industries, governments and other systems, including the financial markets. As global
systems, economies and financial markets are increasingly interconnected, events that once had
only local impact are now more likely to have regional or even global effects. Events that occur in
one country, region or financial market will, more frequently, adversely impact issuers in other
countries, regions or markets. For example, developments in the banking or financial services
sectors could adversely impact a wide range of companies and issuers. These impacts can be
exacerbated by failures of governments and societies to adequately respond to an emerging event
or threat. These types of events quickly and significantly impact markets in the U.S. and across the
globe leading to extreme market volatility and disruption. The extent and nature of the impact on
supply chains or economies and markets from these events is unknown, particularly if a health
emergency or other similar event, persists for an extended period of time. Social, political, economic
and other conditions and events, such as natural disasters, health emergencies (e.g., epidemics and
pandemics), terrorism, conflicts and social unrest, could reduce consumer demand or economic
output, result in market closures, travel restrictions or quarantines, and generally have a significant
impact on the economies and financial markets and the Adviser’s investment advisory activities and
services of other service providers, which in turn could adversely affect the Fund’s investments and
other operations. The value of the Fund’s investment may decrease as a result of such events,
particularly if these events adversely impact the operations and effectiveness of the Adviser or key
service providers or if these events disrupt systems and processes necessary or beneficial to the
investment advisory or other activities on behalf the Fund.

Legislation, Policy and Regulatory Risk. At any time after the date of this report, legislation or
additional regulations may be enacted that could negatively affect the assets of the Fund or the
issuers of such assets. Recent changes in the U.S. political landscape and changing approaches to
regulation may have a negative impact on the entities and/or securities in which the Fund invests.
Legislation or regulation may also change the way in which the Fund itself is regulated. New or
amended regulations may be imposed by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”), the
SEC, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”) or other financial
regulators, other governmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that
supervise the financial markets that could adversely affect the Fund. In particular, these agencies
are empowered to promulgate a variety of new rules pursuant to financial reform legislation in the
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United States. There can be no assurance that future legislation, regulation or deregulation will not
have a material adverse effect on the Fund or will not impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its
investment objective. The Fund also may be adversely affected by changes in the enforcement or
interpretation of existing statutes and rules by these governmental agencies.

LIBOR Discontinuance or Unavailability Risk. The London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) is
intended to represent the rate at which contributing banks may obtain short-term borrowings from
each other in the London interbank market. The regulatory authority that oversees financial services
firms and financial markets in the U.K. has announced that, after the end of 2021, it would no longer
persuade or compel contributing banks to make rate submissions for purposes of determining the
LIBOR rate. As a result, LIBOR may no longer be available or no longer deemed an appropriate
reference rate upon which to determine the interest rate on or impacting certain loans, notes,
derivatives and other instruments or investments comprising some or all of a Fund’s portfolio. In
light of this eventuality, public and private sector industry initiatives are currently underway to
identify new or alternative reference rates to be used in place of LIBOR. There is no assurance that
the composition or characteristics of any such alternative reference rate will be similar to or produce
the same value or economic equivalence as LIBOR or that it will have the same volume or liquidity
as did LIBOR prior to its discontinuance or unavailability, which may affect the value or liquidity or
return on certain of a Fund’s investments and result in costs incurred in connection with closing out
positions and entering into new trades.

Neither the effect of the LIBOR transition process nor its ultimate success can yet be known. The
transition process might lead to increased volatility and illiquidity in markets for, and reduce the
effectiveness of new hedges placed against, instruments whose terms currently include LIBOR.
While some existing LIBOR-based instruments may contemplate a scenario where LIBOR is no longer
available by providing for an alternative rate-setting methodology, there may be significant
uncertainty regarding the effectiveness of any such alternative methodologies to replicate LIBOR.
Not all existing LIBOR-based instruments may have alternative rate-setting provisions and there
remains uncertainty regarding the willingness and ability of issuers to add alternative rate-setting
provisions in certain existing instruments. In addition, a liquid market for newly-issued instruments
that use a reference rate other than LIBOR still may be developing. There may also be challenges for
the Fund to enter into hedging transactions against such newly-issued instruments until a market
for such hedging transactions develops. All of the aforementioned may adversely affect the Fund’s
performance or net asset value.
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Fundamental Investment Restrictions

The following investment restrictions of the Fund are designated as fundamental policies and as
such cannot be changed without the approval of the holders of a majority of the Fund’s outstanding
voting securities, which as used in this annual report means the lesser of (a) 67% of the shares of
the Fund present or represented by proxy at a meeting if the holders of more than 50% of the
outstanding shares are present or represented at the meeting or (b) more than 50% of outstanding
shares of the Fund. As a matter of fundamental policy the Fund:

(1) Will concentrate its investments in the real estate industry, which may include CMBS,
REITs, REIT-like structures, and other securities that are secured by or otherwise have
exposure to, real estate;

(2) May not borrow money, except as permitted by (a) the 1940 Act, or interpretations or
modifications by the SEC, SEC staff or other authority with appropriate jurisdiction, or
(b) exemptive or other relief or permission from the SEC, SEC staff or other authority;

(3) May not issue senior securities, as defined in the 1940 Act, other than (a) preferred
shares which immediately after issuance will have asset coverage of at least 200%, (b)
indebtedness which immediately after issuance will have asset coverage of at least 300%
or (c) borrowings permitted by investment restriction (2) above;

(4) May not purchase securities on margin (but the Fund may obtain such short-term credits
as may be necessary for the clearance of purchases and sales of securities); provided
that the purchase of investment assets with the proceeds of a permitted borrowing or
securities offering will not be deemed to be the purchase of securities on margin;

(5) May not underwrite securities issued by other persons, except insofar as it may
technically be deemed to be an underwriter under the Securities Act in selling or
disposing of a portfolio investment;

(6) May make loans, only as permitted under the 1940 Act, as amended, and as interpreted,
modified, or otherwise permitted by regulatory authority having jurisdiction, from time
to time;

(7) May not purchase or sell real estate, although it may purchase and sell securities which
are secured by interests in real estate and securities of issuers which invest or deal in
real estate; provided that the Fund reserves the freedom of action to hold and to sell
real estate acquired as a result of the ownership of securities; and

(8) May not purchase or sell commodities, except that the Fund may purchase and sell
futures contracts and options, may enter into foreign exchange contracts and may enter
into swap agreements and other financial transactions not requiring the delivery of
physical commodities.

The Fund may borrow money as a temporary measure for extraordinary or emergency purposes,
including the payment of dividends and the settlement of securities transactions which otherwise
might require untimely dispositions of Fund securities. The 1940 Act currently requires that the Fund
have 300% asset coverage with respect to all borrowings other than temporary borrowings.
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FACTS WHAT DOES PRINCIPAL REAL ESTATE INCOME FUND DO WITH YOUR
PERSONAL INFORMATION?

WHY? Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law
gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires
us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please
read this notice carefully to understand what we do.

WHAT? The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or
service you have with us. This information can include:

. Social Security number

. Assets

. Retirement Assets

. Transaction History

. Checking Account Information

) Purchase History

. Account Balances

o Account Transactions

. Wire Transfer Instructions
When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as
described in this notice.

HOW? All financial companies need to share customers’ personal information to run their
everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can
share their customers’ personal information; the reasons Principal Real Estate Income
Fund chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.

DOES PRINCIPAL
REAL ESTATE

REASONS WE CAN SHARE YOUR INCOME FUND CAN YOU LIMIT

PERSONAL INFORMATION SHARE? THIS SHARING?

For our everyday business purposes —

such as to process your transactions, maintain your

. L Yes No
account(s), respond to court orders and legal investigations,

or report to credit bureaus

For our marketing purposes — ,

. No We don't share
to offer our products and services to you

For joint marketing with other financial companies No We don't share

F ffili 3 i -

‘or our a' iliates’ everyday busn?ess purposes ) No We don't share
information about your transactions and experiences
- , . _

.For our a.fflllates everyday l.)usmeSf. purposes No We don't share

information about your creditworthiness

For non-affiliates to market to you No We don't share

QUESTIONS?  Call 1-855-838-9485
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WHO WE ARE

Who is providing this notice?

Principal Real Estate Income Fund

WHAT WE DO

How does Principal Real Estate
Income protect my
personal information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access
and use, we use security measures that comply with federal law.
These measures include computer safeguards and secured files
and buildings.

Our service providers are held accountable for adhering to
strict policies and procedures to prevent any misuse of your
nonpublic personal information.

How does Principal Real Estate
Income collect my
personal information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you

Open an account

Provide account information

Give us your contact information

Make deposits or withdrawals from your account
Make a wire transfer

Tell us where to send the money

Tells us who receives the money

Show your government-issued ID

Show your driver’s license

We also collect your personal information from other companies.

Why can’t | limit all sharing?

Federal law gives you the right to limit only:

. Sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes
—information about your creditworthiness

. Affiliates from using your information to market
to you

) Sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you

State laws and individual companies may give you additional
rights to limit sharing.
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DEFINITIONS
Companies related by common ownership or control. They
- can be financial and nonfinancial companies.
Affiliates .
. Principal Real Estate Income Fund does not share
with our affiliates for marketing purposes.
Companies not related by common ownership or control.
- They can be financial and nonfinancial companies.
Non-affiliates

. Principal Real Estate Income Fund does not share
with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.

Joint marketing

A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial
companies that together market financial products or
services to you.
. Principal Real Estate Income Fund does not
jointly market.
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Notice is hereby given in accordance with Section 23(c) of the Investment Company Act
of 1940, as amended, that from time to time, the Fund may purchase, at market prices,
shares of its common stock in the open market.
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